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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AFER
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MR

Revenue

Gross Profit
(Loss)/Profit for the year
Total Assets

Total Equity

Key Financial Ratios
Gross profit margin
Net profit margin
Return on equity
Return on total assets
Dividend payout ratio
Interest coverage ratio
Current ratio

Quick ratio

Gearing ratio
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EF
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MEE

REmABER
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MEERIHE
TRBEEE
GUFSSEIRES
MENEER
mEELX
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Year ended 31 March

2025
20254

(HK$ million)
(BE#T)

478.6
42.7

(10.9)

278.0
198.5

8.9%

-2.3%

-5.5%

-3.9%

-142.5 timesf{3
2.9 timesfZ
2.9 timesfZ
0.005 timesfs

0.01 timesf&

HESHIHLEE
2024
20244 Percentage
(HK$ million) Change
(B8BmT) Epagr=L)
470.7 1.7%
66.6 -35.9%
10.9 -200.2%
282.0 -1.4%
211.3 -6.1%
14.1%
2.3%
5.2%
3.9%
40.0%
185.4 timesfZ
4.1 timesfZ
4.0 timesf3
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
EFEHRS

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company” or “Winson”), | am present
the final results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group” or “Winson Group”) for the fiscal year ended 31 March
2025 (“FY2025”).

General business condition in FY2025 was affected by the uncertain
macroeconomic environment, labour shortage, and rising labour
and material costs. In our bids for new and renewal contracts in our
environmental hygiene services (“EHS”) business segment, the Group not
only encountered pricing pressure from customers and our competitors,
we also noted the trend for property owners or business operators
resorting to self-managed hygiene and cleaning duties, instead of
engaging external service providers. The Group refrained from engaging
in excessive price competition and focused on providing quality and
specialised services. The Group also had the foresight to strategically
set up a dedicated “health care and facilities management” team to
serve the needs of our customer in the public health service sector
and established a presence in a niche market with relatively high entry
barrier and stringent quality execution requirement in the EHS industry;
during FY2025 the Group secured additional contracts from and also
expanded our customer base in the public health services sector. We will
continue to customise and innovate our EHS offerings to fulfil changing
market needs, such as devising and offering sustainable EHS solution by
application of new technology, which matches the Group’s core value of
being a socially responsible entity and also facilitates the environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) goal of customers. Notably, the Group
secured the renewal of a key service contract with a railway operator
customer during FY2025, which stipulated certain human resource
related terms and restrictions on Group and would inevitably entail
additional costs to the Group, impairing our profitability in the near term.
However, we view this as an opportunity to demonstrate the Group’s
commitment to social responsibility and sharing of burdens with our
customers and employees during the time of economic difficulties, which
will reciprocate a strong business alliance in the longer term.
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CHAIRPERSON'’S STATEMENT

The Group had also taken the strategic step to expand its geographic
coverage of its operation to tap into the vast mainland China market. On
the one hand, the Group acquired a 37.5% interest in Lask JV Facility
Management Services Limited, which through its subsidiaries is principally
engaged in provision of property management services in mainland
China and is expected to enable the Group to leverage on its current
EHS business expertise to create synergies and expansion in geographic
coverage for long term business growth. Moreover, the Group entered
into a long-term cooperation agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Chengdu Media Group whereby the Group is engaged as a total
solutions provider for a new industrial park project in the new developed
district of Chengdu, Sichuan, the scope of which include to undertake
industrial investment promotion, real estate leasing, marketing and
promotion, operational management, property management, furnishing
and decoration etc. The aforesaid project, currently under construction
and expected to be partially completed in Q83, Year 2025, is being
positioned as a new landmark industrial park for digital media and
electronic finance businesses, cultural and communication production,
and trending consumer activities. Considering that Chengdu being the
hub of south-western China for trades, finance, cultural and transport
activities and its GDP for Year 2024 ranked 7th of all cities in mainland
China, the Group believes that participation in such a prominent project
will open up opportunity for significant business growth in the region and
beyond.

Overall, the Group will continue to strengthen its presence and
competitiveness in the EHS market in Hong Kong through innovation and
quality service delivery, and to expand its customer base by targeting
customers in public and social service sectors. At the same time, we shall
apply the same dedication to quality, social awareness and innovative
mind-set to prepare ourselves to take on the forthcoming project
in Chengdu in the medium term. We believe the aforesaid strategic
approach will alleviate the Group from the profitability decline stemming
from excess price competition and rising operating costs environment
in the Hong Kong market. In particular, data from the National Bureau
of Statistics indicated that property prices in Chengdu had bucked the
down trend and been on the rise for the past 6 months consecutively,
signifying improvement in consumer and business confidence. With our
early establishment in Chengdu, the Group is in an advantageous position
to take on EHS and property management business opportunities
brought on by the foreseeable recovery in the real estate market locally,
and also diffuse further growth in the south-western mainland region.
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CHAIRPERSON'’S STATEMENT
EFEHRS

On behalf of the Board, | take this opportunity to express our heartfelt
gratitude to our business partners, staff members and shareholders for
their continuous support and we are confident that the Group’s latest
business strategy will bring about encouraging results to our stakeholders
in the near future.

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 27 June 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Environmental hygiene services

Owing to the Group’s strategy to steer clear of cut-throat price
competition and focus on developing a niche customer base, our
environmental hygiene services (“EHS”) business segment experienced a
slight drop in both tender success rate and contract renewal rate for the
year ended 31 March 2025 (“FY2025”), which were 15.2% and 62.5%
respectively, as compared to 22.7% and 85.9% for the previous year
ended 31 March 2024 (“FY2024”). However, the value of new contracts
secured in FY2025 increased by over 35% and amongst which included
both term and ad-hoc contracts serving private and public health care
service providers, high-end residential buildings and shopping centre.
The value of on-going contracts on hand as at 31 March 2025 amounted
to approximately HK$683.6 million, which was at favourable level, despite
a slight drop from the end of FY2024, taking into consideration the
general contract renewal cycle of the business segment. Such factual
results proved that the Group’s strategy to expand customer base in the
health care service industry was a success and we believe the technical
and quality requirement by the health care service sector will enable the
Group to distinguish itself from other general-purpose EHS operators and
strengthen its reach into business opportunities in the governmental and
public service sector.

Albeit the favourable results in business development, profitability of the
EHS business segment in FY2025 was hampered by competitive pricing
in the market, rising operation costs and labour shortage. While it was the
Group’s strategy to offer specialised and premium EHS solution targeting
a niche group of customers, the Group was faced with tremendous
pressure on pricing in order to retain a competitive edge in both new and
renewal contract tenders. We also noted more customers are opting for
“all-inclusive” approach in their service request, where certain service
items that were separately billable have now become operational outlays
to the Group. Furthermore, the renewed service contract with a railway
operator customer during FY2025 stipulated certain human resource
related terms and restrictions on Group, which led to additional costs
and lower profitability to the Group. At the same time, the Group started
to avall itself to the importation of foreign labour to tackle labour shortage
in the EHS industry; however, such arrangement would entail additional
administrative costs both internally and externally, and also extra training
needs. Accordingly, while the foreign labour approach may relieve
pressure on operational needs, it is expected to render insignificant
impact on the Group’s operational costs overall in the near term.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI wm R h

Looking forward, the Group will maintain its latest strategy to strengthen
its presence in the public and social service sector in Hong Kong,
including government departments, educational institutions, health care
service providers, and public transit operators etc. At the same time, we
shall compile the necessary expertise and resources and prepare for a
head start to undertake the works associated with the new commercial
compound project in Chengdu, and also align the Group’s resources
to expedite business cooperation with the newly acquired investment in
Lask JV Facility Management Services Limited.

Airline catering support services

The Group’s airline catering support (“ACS”) services business has
resumed in FY2024 following a period of suspension during the
COVID outbreak. Business performance in FY2025 remained stable as
compared to FY2024; albeit the Group had been in negotiation with
a potential customer on possible new service contract, no substantial
business opportunities have been materialised which may render notable
change in the performance of the ACS segment in the near term.

A more detailed analysis of the Group’s financial performance by
business segment for the FY2025 is set out in the Financial Review
section below.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

For the FY2025, total revenue was approximately HK$478.6 million,
representing a slightly increase of approximately 1.7% (2024:
approximately HK$470.7 million). The increase in revenue mainly
contributed by renewal of a key contract with railway service operator
and increase in revenue from airline catering support services.

The following is an analysis of Group’s revenue by segment:

RERK  AEBEREFHEHRMERE > MR
EEBRREKREERFEBEANRE > BEK
FFEEFT ~ HEHE BRARBRZHERK
AHRBEEDHS - BILFEK > HARESE
FRENEENANER  BEZREHEE
@IRERERE T REHT£f  TEREGAERE
BER MREFWERENEERITREE
ERBERADETESGME -

=B IEIRTS

HCOVIDEBEBREEEEMFESER » A&EE
MEEmE (MEERIER) ZHDEE
12202484 F MIE S E © 20268 F I E &
U024 EMLLFRFT TR BETEE—
BRE-RBESEFPMBENRS GOETE
B BUEEREMIESERPRANEIM
EERXEDBHIRBHBERELLEHNERKN
A o

BRI AEEN2026 ENM B EENESF
MAOEI T TR #5EER ) —& -

RiA %5 [o] B8

W

FR20258f £ 5 4B ZE 49 AB478.6 8 B 7B 7T
B & 18N 491.7% (202481 £ © 49470.78H &
BIT) cWRBEMAHEERN AR EER
BEEEE—MEEEHN  URKEMEEN
S 42 AR 75 O W 2 1 NPT 2R o

REBRR D BE DR DT ¢

2025 2024
2025%F 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000 %
THET TAET
Environmental hygiene services IRIBEEBRTS 472,003 98.6 465,440 98.9
Airline catering support services =& B2 3B AR 7S 6,616 14 5,267 5155
Total 48zt 478,619 100.0 470,707 100.0

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the FY2025, revenue from environmental hygiene and related services
amounted to approximately HK$472.0 million (FY2024: approximately
HK$465.4 million). The revenue from airline catering support services
amounted to approximately HK$6.6 million (FY2024: approximately
HK$5.3 million).

Cost of Services

For the FY2025 and FY2024, the cost of services of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$436.0 million and HK$404.1 million respectively,
representing approximately 91.1% and 85.9% of the Group’s revenue for
the corresponding years. The cost of services of the Group comprised
direct wages, consumables and sub-contracting fees. The increase in
cost of services mainly comes from the increase in direct labour and
related expenses.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit decreased from approximately HK$66.6 million for the
FY2024 to approximately HK$42.7 million for the FY2025. The overall
gross profit margin decreased from approximately 14.1% for the FY2024
to approximately 8.9% for the FY2025. The following table sets forth
breakdown of gross profit and gross profit margin by segment.

Year ended 31 March 2025

BRI wmR A
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47208 B ATt (202484 F © 9465.48 B 8
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Year ended 31 March 2024

SEPNPLEEIZRIISNIR- Il & F2024F3831HLEFE
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Profit Profit Margin Profit  Profit Margin
EF EF=E EH ESHIES
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
FHT FHET
Environmental hygiene services IRIBEEBRTS 42,062 8.9 65,819 14.1
Airline catering support services =& RS 600 9.1 741 141
Total 4Est 42,662 8.9 66,560 14.1

The gross profit of environmental hygiene and related services decreased
by approximately 36.0% from approximately HK$65.8 million for the
FY2024 to HK$42.1 million for the FY2025. The gross profit margin
decreased from approximately 14.1% of the FY2024 to 8.9% for FY2025.
The gross profit of airline catering support services was approximately
HK$0.6 million and gross profit margin was approximately 9.1% (FY2024:
approximately HK$0.7 million and 14.1% respectively)

The decrease of gross profit of environmental hygiene and related
services was mainly derived from increase of direct labour and related
expenses.

RIETERBERBREEFR B202481 F 1Y
#165.8 5 B8 B 7R /> 4936.0% 2202581 F
B42 1B BB T EFMEB2024F FH L
14.1%3 /> 202581 FF #98.9% © f =& RS
ERFHNEFLAB06EBBT EFEXRY
£9.1% (202481 F : D RIAIAOTE B B T
Fe14.1%) o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI wm R h

General Operating Expenses

The general operating expenses decreased by approximately 1.6% or
approximately HK$0.9 million, from approximately HK$56.4 million for the
FY2024 to approximately HK$55.5 million for the FY2025. The decrease
of general operating expenses was mainly due to decrease in provision of
long service payment and reverse of expected credit loss of receivables.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs for each of the FY2025 and FY2024 were
approximately HK$0.1 million.

(Loss)/Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for
the Year Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group’s loss and total comprehensive income attributable to owners
of the Company was approximately HK$8.4 million for the FY2025 and
the profit and total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$9.9 million for the FY2024, representing
of approximately —1.8% and 2.3% of the respective year’s total revenue.

Capital Expenditure

During the FY2025, the Group’s capital expenditure included purchase
of property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately HK$2.2
million (FY2024: HK$31.1 million). These capital expenditures were mainly
financed by fund generated from operating activities.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s total current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$199.9 million (31 March 2024:
HK$222.5 million) and HK$67.8 million (31 March 2024: HK$54.9 million)
respectively, while the current ratio was approximately 2.9 times (31
March 2024: approximately 4.1 times).

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$278.0 million which were financed by total liabilities and total equity of
approximately HK$79.5 million and HK$198.5 million respectively. As at
31 March 2025, the Group had cash and bank balance of approximately
HK$99.1 million (31 March 2024: approximately HK$93.6 million).

The Group gearing ratio was 0.005 times as at 31 March 2025 (31
March 2024: 0.01 times), which was calculated based on the total lease
liabilities and bank borrowings over total equity of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

There was no change to the Company’s capital structure during FY2025.
As at 31 March 2025, the issued share capital of the Company was
HK$6,000,000 divided into 600,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each (the
“Shares”)

EMPLOYEES, TRAINING AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had 1,873 (31 March 2024: 1,789)
employees. The Group enters into separate employment contracts
with each of the Group’s employees in accordance with the applicable
employment laws in Hong Kong. The remuneration package includes
basic salary, bonuses and other cash allowances or subsidies. The Group
conducts annual review on salaries, bonuses and promotions based
on the performance of each employee. The total staff costs and related
expenses (including directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 31 March
2025 were approximately HK$324.2 million, representing a increase of
approximately 11.1% or approximately HK$32.4 million as compared with
approximately HK$291.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Apart from basic remuneration, share options have been granted under
the pre-IPO share option scheme to recognise the contribution to the
Group by an executive Director and certain employees of the members
of the Group. Further share options may be granted under share option
scheme to attract and retain the best available personnel, provide
additional incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), as well as
promote the success of the business of the Group.

In order to provide quality services to customers, the Group provides
ongoing training regularly to relevant staff across different departments
with topics including but not limited to information technology,
environmental protection, ISO training, safety training as well as trainings
for supervisory roles, etc. Such trainings are either provided internally or
by external parties.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since the Group generated most of the revenue and incurred most of the
costs in Hong Kong dollars for the year ended 31 March 2025, there was
no significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation and the Group
did not maintain any hedging policy against foreign exchange risk. The
management will consider hedging significant currency exposure should
the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2025 and 31 March 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CHARGE OVER GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings of carrying value of
approximately HK$22.2 million as at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024
approximately HK$23.2 million), were pledged to secure the bank
facilities or bank loans.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had HK$0.2 million capital commitments
(31 March 2024: HK$0.1 million) in respect of contracted but not
provided for purchase of property, plant and equipment.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 7 June 2024, Perma Growth Investment Limited (“Perma Growth”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “SPA”) with Lask JV Holding Co. Ltd (“Lask
JV Holding”) and Lask JV Facility Management Services Limited (“Lask
JV”). Pursuant to the SPA, Perma Growth conditionally agreed to
acquire from Lask JV Holding a 37.5% equity interest in Lask JV for
a cash consideration of RMB18,375,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,809,000 based on the exchange rate on 7 June 2024, the
“Acquisition”). Completion of the Acquisition took place on 14 November
2024. More details of the Acquisition were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 7 June 2024 and circular dated 31 July 2024.

Except for the Acquisition, the Group had no other material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures during the year
ended 31 March 2025.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Except for the investment in Lask JV, the Group did not hold any other

significant investments as at 31 March 2025.

Below is the breakdown of the Group’s significant investment as at 31
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group leverages its environmental hygiene service (EHS) expertise
by means of the Acquisition, combining its capabilities with Lask
SZ’s property services in the Greater Bay Area to expand geographic
coverage. The Group believes this will diversify income streams, grow the
mainland China customer base, and maximize sustainable shareholder
returns through regional expansion synergies.

Leveraging the Group’s environmental hygiene expertise, Lask SZ
is positioned to capture growth through integrated property service
offerings in the Greater Bay Area, with anticipating enhanced customer
acquisition and revenue diversification.

Further details of the aforesaid investment are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have any plans for material investments or capital
assets as of 31 March 2025.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There are no significant events after the reporting period and up to the
date of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognise the importance of good corporate governance
in management and internal procedures so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted the code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Part
2 of Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance.

Save for the deviation of code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as
described below, the Board considers that, the Company has complied,
to the extent applicable and permissible, with the code provisions as
set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2025 and the
Directors will use their best endeavours to procure the Company to
comply with the CG Code and make disclosure of deviation from such
code in accordance with the Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct for securities transactions
by Directors. The Directors are reminded of their obligations under the
required standard of dealings set out in the Model Code on a regular
basis. The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors, and
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
March 2025.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, gives
direction and make decisions on the Group’s strategies, policies,
business plan and financial budget and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. In addition, to oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). The Board has
delegated to the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. Further details of the Board committees
are set out in this annual report.
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Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised seven members,
including of four executive Directors, and three independent
non-executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Mr. Chung Koon Yan
Mr. Chan Chun Sing

Each Director has relevant experience, competence and skills appropriate
to the business requirements of the Company. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 38 to 45 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” that Madam Ng Sing Mui is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei
and Mr. Sze Wai Lun, and Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the sister of Mr. Sze Wai
Lun, the Board members do not have any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among themselves.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Board at all times met the
requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules of having a
minimum of three independent non-executive Directors (representing
at least one-third of the Board) with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting and related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors. The Board has
assessed their independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and concluded that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has renewed the letter of appointment with each of the
independent non-executive Directors for a term of two years commencing
on 16 March 2024 unless terminated by not less than three months
prior written notice served by either party on the other or otherwise in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment. Each of such
appointments is subject to the rotation and retirement provisions in the
articles of association of the Company.

CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code requires the responsibilities
between the chairperson and chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Company has not appointed a
chief executive officer and the role and functions of chief executive officer
have been performed by all the executive Directors, including Madam
Ng Sing Mui, the chairperson of the Company (the “Chairperson”) and
an executive Director, collectively. The Board considered that this has
the advantages of allowing contributions from all executive Directors
with different expertise and will review the current situation from time to
time and shall make necessary arrangements when the Board considers
appropriate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted on 13 March 2017 a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”), a summary of which is set out as follows:

- The Company is committed to equality of opportunity in all aspects
of its business;

- The Company believes that a diversity of perspectives can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including
skills, regional and industry experience, background, race, gender
and other qualities;

- In forming its perspective on diversity, the Company will also take
into account factors based on its own business model and specific
needs from time to time;
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- The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its
business strategy and to maximize the Board’s effectiveness; and

- Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised seven
Directors, two of whom are female. The Company targets to avoid
a single gender Board and will timely review the gender diversity of
the Board based on its own business model and specific needs. The
Company believes that the balance of gender in the Board would bring
more inspiration to the Board and enhance the business development of
the Group. As at the date of this annual report, the male to female gender
ratio in the Company’s workforce (including executive Directors and
senior management) is approximately 26:74.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Nomination Committee had
principally reviewed the Board composition and the implementation and
effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy. It was of the view that the
Board consisted of members with different gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge, which met the objectives under the Board Diversity Policy.

MECHANISM TO ENSURE INDEPENDENT
VIEWS AND INPUTS TO THE BOARD

To ensure that independent views and input are available to the Board,
the following mechanism has been established by the Board:

- Where appropriate, the Company shall arrange suitable and
sufficient resources to cover any matters relating to the obtaining of
an independent opinion by the Board, including but not limited to
the engagement of a legal team or any other professionals for such
PUrpose;

- Where appropriate, the Directors shall give at least three working
days’ notice to the Company Secretary of the Company to obtain
an independent opinion, including but not limited to engaging a
professional team for such purpose;

- The Board is required to review its structure, size, composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity policy at
least annually to ensure that the composition of the Board complies
with the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules including
maintaining a balanced mix of executive and non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) so
that the Board has a strong element of independence which can
effectively exercise independent judgment; and
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- If all the independent non-executive Directors have served on the
Board for more than nine years, the Company should consider
to appoint a new independent non-executive Director at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
said mechanism during the year ended 31 March 2025 and considered
that it has been implemented effectively and will continue to monitor its
implementation and effectiveness on an annual basis.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board intends to hold Board meetings regularly at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than 14
days will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors
with an opportunity to attend and propose matters to be discussed in the
meeting agenda.

For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice
will generally be given. The agenda and accompanying documents are
dispatched to the Directors or Board committee members at least 3 days
before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the
documents and be adequately prepared for the meetings.

When Directors or Board committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairperson prior to the
meeting. Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings
will be recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters considered by
the Board and the Board committee and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting
is held.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Board held 6 Board meetings
and passed resolutions by way of written resolutions. The attendance
record of each Directors is set out in the table on page 26 of this annual
report.

GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 March 2025, 2 general meetings of the
Company, being the 2024 annual general meeting (the “2024 AGM”) and
the extraordinary general meeting held on 20 August 2024, were held.
The attendance record of each Director is set out in the table on page 26
of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 21 February 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Koon Yan, Mr.
Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr. Chan Chun Sing with Mr. Chung Koon
Yan being the chairperson of the Audit Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review, in draft form, the annual report, interim report and accounts, and
to provide advice and comments to the Board. In this regard, members
of the Audit Committee will liaise with the Board, the senior management
and auditor. The Audit Committee will also consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and give consideration to any matters that have been raised
by the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer (if any) or auditor. Members of the
Audit Committee are also responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management systems.

The corporate governance functions are also performed by the Audit
Committee. The corporate governance functions are to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to
comply with the CG Code and make recommendations to the Board, to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors, and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2025. The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee
at the above meetings is set out in the table on page 26 of this annual
report. In addition, the Audit Committee also dealt with matters by way of
circulation of written resolutions during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Audit Committee had
performed the following works:

= reviewed and made recommendation to the Board the engagement
of the Company’s auditor in respect of perform agree-upon

procedures for the interim results announcement;

- discussed with the Company’s auditor on the audit planning;
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- reviewed the interim and annual financial statements and the related
results announcement, documents and other matters or issues
raised by the Company’s auditor and made recommendation to the
Board the re-appointment of the Company’s auditor;

- discussed and confirmed with the management the effectiveness
of the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control systems, reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems and made recommendation to the Board;

- reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and

- reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code during
the year ended 31 March 2024 and corporate governance related
matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 and is of the opinion
that such consolidated financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules, other applicable legal
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor
Stephen and Mr. Chung Koon Yan and one executive Director, namely
Ms. Sze Tan Nei with Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen being the chairperson
of the Remuneration Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policies and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and to set up a formal and transparent procedure for
determination of such remuneration policies.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach under code
provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make recommendations to the
Board on remuneration packages of the Directors and the members of
senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2025. The attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the table on page 26 of this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Remuneration Committee
performed the following works:

- discussed and reviewed the existing policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management; and

- made recommendations to the Board on salary adjustment
and bonus proposals for the executive Directors and senior
management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises one
executive Director, namely Madam Ng Sing Mui and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr.
Chan Chun Sing with Madam Ng Sing Mui being the chairperson of the
Nomination Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. In assessing the Board
composition, the Nomination Committee will take into account various
aspects set out in the Board Diversity Paolicy.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
as well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered necessary),
including periodical review of such plans. The appointment of a new
Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when
it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for decision by
the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
Nomination Committee.
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The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well
as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in
particular, are set out as follows:

(@  participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of conducts;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

(c) serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for non-
executive Director) and other relevant Board committees, if invited;

(d) bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board,
giving the Board and any committee on which he or she serves the
benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and participation in
the Board/committee meetings;

(e) scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

() ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform their
powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(@ conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation
or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in
accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by
the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality of
the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall also be
evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
for filing the office of an independent non-executive Director with such
qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.
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The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 March 2025 at which the members of the Nomination Committee
reviewed the Board’s structure, size, composition and diversity, assessed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and made
recommendation to the Board on the re-election of retiring Directors
at the 2024 AGM. The attendance record of each member of the
Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 26 of this annual
report.

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS,
THE BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND
GENERAL MEETING

Attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings, Board committee
meetings and general meeting held during the year ended 31 March
2025 is set out as follows:
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Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meeting Meetings Meeting
BIZEEE REZEE HNEEE
EEHL EEEgH E - = RERE
Executive Directors
HITESR
Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) 6/6 N/A 1/1 N/A 2/2
RERZT (ZE) NER B
Ms. Sze Tan Nei 6/6 N/A N/A 3/3 2/2
HEFHEZ £ NEA NER
Mr. Ang Ming Wah 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
HRREL Y TEMA TEFA TEA
Mr. Sze Wai Lun 5/6 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
IEmEE NER TEHA TEFA
Independent non-executive Directors
BUERITES
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen 6/6 3/3 1/1 3/3 2/2
RIFREE
Mr. Chung Koon Yan 6/6 3/3 N/A 3/3 2/2
BIERSLE TEHA
Mr. Chan Chun Sing 5/6 3/3 11 N/A 2/2
BRIRE ST RNERA
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. All
Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) and have exercised their duties with
care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group. The
Company continuously updates the Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory and statutory
requirements from time to time to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. The Company also
provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’
knowledge and skills.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
March 2025 to the Company. Training record of each Director received
for the year ended 31 March 2025 is summarised below:
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Name of Director Type of Training
EENs b ki)
Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) REEBLT (FE) A B
Ms. Sze Tan Nei M e &= A B
Mr. Ang Ming Wah JHEAEE S A4 A B
Mr. Sze Wai Lun M fmotd A B
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen RIFRGE A B
Mr. Chung Koon Yan I AL L A B
Mr. Chan Chun Sing FRIREE St 4 A B
Notes: FysE -

A attending seminars and/or conference and/or forums on subjects relating to
directors’ duties and corporate governance

B reading newspaper, journals and updates as regards legal and regulatory
changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EERE

EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of the senior management (comprising Directors) of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2025 by band is set out below:

ZIIJ}

[2 B9 & B

HE2025F3H3IHLEEE AR TSR E
HE (BFEEFR) Wiz EE T ¢

Remuneration Band

Number of individual

FrEMEE E AE
Nil = _
HK$1 to HK$1,000,000 13575 21,000,000 7% 6
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 £ 1,500,000 7% 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,003 75 2,000,000 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,0013#75ZE2,500,00058 7T -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,0013#752E3,000,00058 7T -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,0013#75 23,500,000 7T 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 75 24,000,000 7T -
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 %75 24,500,000 7T 1

10

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company adopted its shareholders communication policy
(“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) on 13 March 2017 with the
objective of providing the Shareholders with information about the
Company and enabling them to engage actively with the Company and
exercise their rights as Shareholders in an informed manner.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through the
Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports), annual general
meetings and other general meetings that may be convened, as well
as by making available all the (i) corporate communication documents
including, but not limited to, copy of annual reports, interim reports,
notices of meeting, circulars, proxy forms (“Corporate Communication”);
(i) other documents issued by the Company which are published on the
website of the Stock Exchange for the information or action of holders of
any of its securities; (iii) constitutional documents of the Company and the
Board committees, (iv) corporate information including list of Directors;
and (v) other Corporate Communication including the procedures
Shareholders can use to propose a person for election as a Director
on the Company’s website. Corporate Communication will be provided
to the Shareholders in plain language and in both English and Chinese
versions to facilitate the Shareholders’ understanding.
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Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings. Appropriate arrangements for the
annual general meetings shall be in place to encourage Shareholders’
participation. Board members, in particular, either the chairman of Board
committees or their delegates, appropriate management executives
and external auditors will attend annual general meetings to answer
Shareholders’ questions. Shareholders are encouraged to provide,
amongst other things, in particular, their email addresses to the Company
in order to facilitate timely and effective communications. The Company
recognises the importance of Shareholders’ privacy and will not disclose
Shareholders’ information without their consent, unless required by law
to do so.

In view of the above, the Board considered that the Shareholders
Communication Policy had been effectively implemented during the year
ended 31 March 2025.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by Shareholders

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general
meeting.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, there are no provisions allowing Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at the general meetings under the articles
of association of the Company or the Companies Act of the Cayman
Islands, as amended, modified and supplemented. Shareholders may
follow the procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary general
meeting for any business specified in such written requisition. The written
requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by
the relevant Shareholder(s) and deposited to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place of business
at Unit 1926, 19/F., Global Plaza, 1 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the company secretary of the Company by
post to Unit 1926, 19/F., Global Plaza, 1 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong, or via email at the contact information as
provided on the website of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The amended and restated memorandum and articles of association
of the Company was adopted by a special resolution passed by the
Shareholders at the 2022 annual general meeting of the Company held
on 2 August 2022 and is available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. There was no change in articles of association of
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board’s Responsibilities for the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and oversees such systems on an ongoing
basis, while ensuring a review of the effectiveness of these systems of the
Group is conducted at least annually. The scope of such review covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to deal with identified risks, safeguard its assets, prevent and
detect fraud, misconduct and loss, ensure the accuracy of the Group’s
financial reports and achieve compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. Such systems are to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities)
of risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, and
management has provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee and
the Board on the effectiveness of these systems for the year ended 31
March 2025.

Main Features of the Risk Management System

The Company recognises that good risk management is essential for
the long-term and sustainable growth of a business. The Group’s risk
management structure and the major responsibilities of each role of the
structure are summarized below:
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FABRR TENRREENEBRAY
RELZREHEE -AEENRBEERE
RERBREAGNTIEMEHANT :

Board Audit Committee Management Risk Owners
5 BIZEREY (=pLi] ENS=I=UN
Role Major Responsibilities AR FTERE
Board —  determines the business strategies and objectives EEHE - EELXREEBEZEERR
of the Group, and evaluates and determines the AR > R aT il B E AN
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in EEAEMRKEBIERR
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives; FEEZMEE RS E &
2E;

= oversees management in the design, implement
and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems;

- EBHEEEREYHARER
KA B EEIE R RAVER ST
B
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TEERRS
Role Major Responsibilities Ae TERSE
- oversees the Group’s risk management and FEGEEAEENAR
internal control systems on an ongoing basis and BEERATEEZRAR
ensures the Company establishes and maintains WMRARBDBEILMRET
appropriate and effective risk management and ERERBXRNE RS
internal control systems; RAEEBEZERR ;
Audit - reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk |IZEEE EVEF—R@HARE
Committee management and internal control systems at least e = A
annually, and such review should cover all material RN BEERZE R
controls including financial, operational and NEBEMBEARERE
compliance controls; BREMH KERGRE
7
- reviews the emerging risks of the Group annually, BEBRAEENEL
and the risk management and the internal controls YRR W E R R IR
in place to address those risks; A EERAZER
B
- discusses the risk management and internal control HAEEEEENHA
systems with management of the Group to ensure BEIRERNEEEIERE
that the management of the Group has performed DERAEREERER
its duty to have an effective system. The discussion BTEBERIBENA
should include the adequacy of resources, staff 7o AR mIERIEARE
qualifications and experience, training programmes ® 89 & 5t K B 75 B R B
and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial EEFEZER - BTERE
reporting function and to rectify any weaknesses R & B ~ 327872 ke B A
that may be revealed from time to time; EEERERE > WAIIER
AER B IRV {EAI5518 ;
—  considers major investigation findings on risk EEEEHNZ KK EE
management and internal control matters as EREHEREENRNA
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and HMEEEENEERE
the Group’s management’s response to these ERUKRAEBEEE
findings; HZEERZOIE ;
Management -  designs, implements and ongoing assesses the & IEE FEt s BREARFE G

WINSON HOLDINGS H
XIBERE BB RAE

Group’s risk management and internal control
systems;

gives prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on risk management and internal control
matters as delegated by the Board, on Audit
Committee’s initiative or raised by the external
consultant(s);

ONG KONG LIMITED
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EEELAHRS

Role Major Responsibilities Ae TERSE
- provides confirmation to the Board and the - MEFEMEZEZET
Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the risk BREREE RN EEE
management and internal control systems; ERBENBERE ;
Risk Owners -  ultimately accountable for ensuring the risk is  EMBESA — EREEHREERKEED
managed appropriately; and HEEE &

- responsible for, or oversight of, activities to manage
each identified risk.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, each of the departments of
the Group identified major risk events, including environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) risks, in the area they operate and assess the
possibility of occurrence and potential impacts of these risk events to the
Group. Each department also prepared solutions and mitigation measures
to deal with the possible risk events to the management. The assessment
result had been submitted to the Audit Committee for consideration.

Main Features of the Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is compatible
with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COSQ”) 2013 framework. The framework enables the Group
to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. The components of the framework are shown as follow:

Control - a set of standards, processes and structures

Environment that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

Risk Assessment  — a dynamic and iterative process for identifying

and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining
how risks should be managed.
Control Activities - actions established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives
are carried out and ensure timely, accurate and
complete disclose of discloseable information.

Information and - internal and external communication to provide

Communication the Group with the information needed to carry
out day-to-day controls or disclose to prevent

a false market in the Group’s securities.
Monitoring - ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain

whether each components of internal control is
present and functioning.
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Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

|dentification - identify ownership of risks (including, amongst
others, material risks relating to ESG, business
objectives and risks that could affect the

achievement of objectives.

Evaluation - analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and

evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management - consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication with the Board in respect of
the risks and on-going monitor the residual

risks.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
(including ESG risks) and internal control systems during the year
ended 31 March 2025. While the Company does not have an internal
audit function, it has appointed SHINEWING Risk Services Limited
(“SHINEWING”) to carry out the internal audit function such as the
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems covering
financial, operational and legal compliance controls once during the year.

During the review, SHINEWING conducted interviews with relevant
processes owners, performed walkthrough test and test of control on
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems covering
financial, operational and legal compliance controls. From the review
reports, corrective actions and improvement programs have been
proposed for the deficiencies found in the risk management and internal
control systems. The results of the reviews have been submitted to the
Audit Committee for consideration. The Audit Committee had a meeting
with SHINEWING to review findings on the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and respective corrective actions done
on an on-going basis. Based on the review results for the year, there
were no material deficiencies identified. In addition, management is of
the view that the risk management and internal controls systems of
the Group has not changed and its remains appropriate and effective
in all aspects. The Board, through the review from Audit Committee,
concluded that the Group’s risk management (including ESG risks) and
internal controls systems were adequate and effective and the Company
had complied with the code provision on risk management and internal
control of the CG code during the year ended 31 March 2025. The Board
also considered that the resources for the design, implementation and
monitor the risk management and internal control systems, including staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit, and financial reporting functions,
as well as those relating to the issuer’'s ESG performance and reporting
were adequate.
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Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling
and Dissemination of Inside Information

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of
its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an inside
information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have
been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

- access of inside information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis.

- transmission of inside information in electronic form should be
password-protected.

= prohibit employees to discuss inside information in public area.

- code names are assigned to confidential projects so that any
reference to them would not be linked to the projects themselves to
minimize possibilities of unintentional leakage.

& trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with
reasonable care.

- confidentiality agreements are in place before the Group enters into
significant negotiations.

- officers and employees other than the designated representative
are prohibited to speak externally on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view
that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, as opposed to diverting resources to establish a separate
internal audit department, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at
least annually the need for an internal audit department.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to provide
compliance and full range of company secretarial services to the Group
in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing regulatory
environment and to suit difference commercial needs.

Mr. Tse Kam Fai (“Mr. Tse”), the representative of Uni-1, has been
appointed as the company secretary with effect from 1 October 2022.
His primary corporate contact person at the Company is Ms. Sze Tan
Nei, an executive Director.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, Mr. Tse has undertaken not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the total fees in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by BDO Limited, the auditor of the Company,
are set out as follows:

EEELAHRS

1% B BT B =

B E2025F3H31HIEFE » AR B ZE
MEAUEEEZEMERARATEM
Bt MIEEBIRF ZBEREHTANT

Services rendered Fee paid/payable
Friz (A9 AR %5 gt EHER
HK$’000
TAET
Audit services: EAHARF
— Annual audit for the year ended 31 March 2025 — HE2025F3H31HILFEE > EEHEt 600
Non-audit services: JEFETARTS ¢
— Perform agreed-upon procedures for interim results ~ — FLAREREE N ERITIHEIRT
announcement 80
— Other services — EMARTS T
Total 4t 680

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements of the Group and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and the Company’s management will provide
information and explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company in respect of its reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2025 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
65 to 71 of this annual report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Ng Sing Mui (2 E&#§) (“Madam Ng”), aged 64, a co-founder
of the Group, has been a Director since 31 May 2016. Madam Ng was
re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017 and is
currently acting as the Chairperson. She is also the chairperson of the
Nomination Committee and holds directorships in all subsidiaries of the
Company. Madam Ng is primarily responsible for the strategic planning,
operation planning and overall management of the Group.

Madam Ng has almost 40 years of experience in the environmental
hygiene services industry in Hong Kong. Building the business from the
ground up since December 1983, Madam Ng has held a leadership role
in the overall management and business development of the Group.

Madam Ng has been a certified associate fellow of the Institute of
Managers and Leaders Australia and New Zealand (formerly known as
Australian Institute of Management) since September 1995 and has
become a fellow member since June 2019.

Madam Ng is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei and Mr. Sze Wai Lun, both
of whom are executive Directors, and the mother-in-law of Mr. Tse Ho
Yue, the chief operating officer of the Company. She is the sole director
of Rich Cheer Development Limited and Sze’s Holdings Limited, both
of which have disclosable interests in the Shares under the provisions
in Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571, the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”). Madam Ng is also
the sole shareholder of Rich Cheer Development Limited.
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Ms. Sze Tan Nei (Ffi /3 {E) (‘Ms. Sze”), aged 45, joined the Group
in February 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016.
Ms. Sze was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February
2017. She is also a member of the Remuneration Committee and holds
directorships in several subsidiaries of the Company. She is primarily
responsible for strategic planning, operation planning and compliance
control of the Group’s business operation.

Ms. Sze graduated from Queensland University of Technology,
Australia, with a Bachelor of Business (Management) in October 2004.
She completed the Pest Control and Pesticide Safety for Industrial
Undertakings course organised by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2008. Ms. Sze was certified as a Quality Management Systems Auditor
by the International Register of Certificated Auditors, by completing the
Lead Auditor Training Course (in accordance to international standards
ISO 9001:2008 & ISO 19011:2002) co-organised by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency and International Management Systems
Associates Limited in October 2009. She has also completed the
Environmental Management Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training
Course for ISO 14001:2004 & ISO 19011:2002 in January 2010, and
the Occupational Health & Safety Management Systems Auditor/Lead
Auditor Training Course for BS OHSAS 18001:2007 & ISO 19011:2002 in
April 2011. In July 2017, she has completed the Intensive ISO 9001:2015
QMS and ISO 14001:2015 EMS Internal Auditor Training organised
by SGS Hong Kong Limited. Ms. Sze has awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health and Safety
Management Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training Course issued by
SGS United Kingdom Ltd. in September 2019. She was also accredited
as a certified ESG Planner by International Chamber of Sustainable
Development in April 2023.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Sze was employed as property
management assistant in April 2005 by Jones Lang LaSalle Management
Services Ltd, being a company engaging in the provision of services
specialising in real estates. She was subsequently promoted to the
position of assistant management surveyor in March 2006 and remained
in that position until she left such company in August 2006. She was then
employed as a marketing assistant in the communications department
of Hongkong Land Group Limited in August 2006, being a company
engaging in property investment, management and development until
February 2007.

Ms. Sze is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui, the Chairperson and an
executive Director, the sister of Mr. Sze Wai Lun, an executive Director,
and the spouse of Mr. Tse Ho Yue, the chief operating officer of the
Company.

EFhEREEE

MAERE (T2 d1) > 458% °» 12200742
BIMAKREBRRR2016E6H20HEZEA
BE o L MN2017E2821HEBT AR
TEZE -HITAFNEZEEGRE » TIETAX
/&E%%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂz%ﬁﬁk ° ?&IE%%—%

REFEFEENRRRE - SERILE
FREEIE o

M TH20045F 108 B EMNE BRI
KE > IS (BI1E) B2 - %72008
ERmEPET NSRRI T HEEEE—
ERMERTLHBRERNGERRE -1

2009108 ' X THEBEMEAmERE
BEEBREERZFAHE B A B (International
Management Systems Associates Limited)t:
FRRNETEZEEINNER RIEEERZ
# SO 9001 : 2008%ISO 19011 : 2002) °
EEERAEZEAMPeRNEAREEE
RBBEZEB o LI BIRR20105F1 8 Tk
ISO 14001 : 2004%ISO 19011 : 20029 IR
BEBA#KEZE TIEREEIIERE
I 2011448 58 BBS OHSAS 18001 :
2007 /%ISO19011 : 2002 B X L 2 BEE
BRAEZE TEEZEEINERE - P
2017TH7H  REMEABEAWAREARR
AT FEARIE 1ISO 9001 : 2015@E &8
Z M ZISO 14001 : 20151815 & 12 % 48 N &6
Ei1Z B4R o L T HR2019F98 5 ESGS
United Kingdom Ltd.78 & BISO 45001 :
mm%ﬁ%@@&%mﬁﬁ%gﬁé/z
EEZEBIIRERTEZS o 1)3271'}3’\2023
FAREHROURFEERBESTIEARA
ESGZ A o

RINAZRE BT > fiL £ 702005F4 8 % fh
BHMITYMEZEERRAS (EMRHME
BB AR) BRARYEEEYNE 28N
2006F3E EFA REBNIBEERAEMT — B
EEZBAIE E£2006F8H BE M - KEER X
2006F8A LR AEMERBRAR (K
EMERE -BELRAENQRE) BAMH
BEERIE 0 HEE2007F28 °

MZETAEERNTEETRBEELLINLRE
$¢Lﬁ§$ﬁ'ﬁ@fﬁ5‘ﬁ$ﬁ’\]ﬁﬁﬁﬂ&$@ﬁEFFE
BHEEFRENRRE

ANNUAL REPORT 2025
2025F F 3R

39



40

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFhEREEE

Mr. Ang Ming Wah GHEBERZE) (“Mr. Ang”), aged 69, joined the Group in
March 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016. Mr. Ang
was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017. He is
primarily responsible for the business development and planning, control
and management of the Group’s business operation.

Mr. Ang graduated from the University of Waterloo, Canada, with a
Bachelor of Mathematics in October 1978, and Bachelor of Arts in
October 1979. He also completed an executive program organised
by the Business School of the University of Michigan in 1997. Mr. Ang
was admitted as an associate member of the Hong Kong Management
Association in 1986 and was appointed as an “Occupational Safety and
Health Ambassador” by the Occupational Safety & Health Council in
2008.

Mr. Ang has over 30 years of experience in the environmental hygiene
services industry in Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, Mr. Ang was
employed by Reliance Services Company Limited (currently known as
ISS Facility Services Limited), being a company engaging in the provision
of environmental hygiene related services, as operations manager in May
1986. He was subsequently promoted to senior operations manager in
October 1988. Mr. Ang left such company in February 2000 and his last
position held was director in operation department. Mr. Ang subsequently
joined Best Result Cleaning Services Ltd. (currently known as Best
Result Environmental Services Limited), being a company engaging in the
provision of cleaning services, as general manager in July 2000 and was
appointed as director and general manager in 2004. He held that position
until he left such company in September 2006.

Mr. Sze Wai Lun (i {& f&) (‘Mr. Sze”), aged 42, joined the Group in
September 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016. Mr.
Sze was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017.
He is primarily responsible for the overall management of IT development
of the Group.

Mr. Sze graduated from Giriffith University, Australia, with a Bachelor
of Commerce in December 2006, and a Diploma of Commerce from
Queensland Institute of Business and Technology (currently known
as Griffith College), Australia, in February 2003. He has also obtained
a Diploma in SME Company Operation & Management from Hong
Kong Productivity Council in September 2014, a Certificate of Data
Centre Operation and Maintenance Engineers Course from Hong Kong
Productivity Council in February 2015 and a Certificate of CGEIT (Certified
in the Governance of Enterprise IT) from Hong Kong Productivity Council
in May 2015. Mr. Sze has been admitted as a member of ISACA
(Information Systems Audit and Control Association) since February
2021.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Sze was employed by Citicorp International
Limited, being a company which provides banking and financial services
as a securities operations professional in the securities operations
department of the operations and technology group in April 2007. He
held that position until he left such company in August 2007.

Mr. Sze is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui, the Chairperson and an
executive Director, the brother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei, an executive Director,
and the brother-in-law of Mr. Tse Ho Yue, the chief operating officer of
the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (& & i§) (Chinese alias: =I5 &E), M.H.
(“Mr. Yuen”) aged 77, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 21 February 2017 and is responsible for providing
independent judgment on the Group’s strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct. He is also the chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yuen graduated with a Master of Science in Interdisciplinary Design
and Management from The University of Hong Kong in November 2013.
He is an Eminent fellow member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors, fellow member of Chartered Institute of Housing, fellow
member of the HK Institute of Housing and a member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. He has more than 50 years of real estate
experience from both public and private sectors.

Mr. Yuen was the ex-chairman of the Industry Training Advisory
Committee (property management) of the Education Bureau, past
chairman of the Real Estate Service Training Board, ex-committee
member of the Employee Retraining Board, ex-member of the Land and
Building Advisory Committee, past chairman of the Chartered Institute of
Housing (HK branch), past president of the HK Association of Property
Management Companies and past president of the HK Institute of Real
Estate Administrators. Mr. Yuen has retired from the office of executive
director of a real estate investment fund and has been appointed as its
non-executive chairman since June 2017.

Mr. Yuen was an independent non-executive director of Kafelaku Coffee
Holding Limited (formerly known as Li Bao Ge Group Limited) (whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
1869) from January 2020 to April 2022, an independent non-executive
director of Janco Holdings Limited (whose shares are listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8035) from May 2021 to April 2022.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFhEREEE

Mr. Chung Koon Yan ($2¥E ) (“Mr. Chung”), aged 61, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017 and
is responsible for providing independent judgment on the Group’s
strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct. He is also the
chairperson of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. Chung graduated with a Master of Professional Accounting from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2000. He is a practicing
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Chung is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales since February 2007 and November 2014 respectively. He is also
a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Chung is currently a director of Chiu, Choy & Chung CPA Ltd. and
has more than 25 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and taxation.
Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of Unity
Group Holdings International Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1539) and an independent
non-executive director of Great World Company Holdings Limited (whose
shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8003).

Mr. Chan Chun Sing (BR#& &) (“Mr. Chan”), aged 45, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017 and is
responsible for providing independent judgment on the Group’s strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct. He is also a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chan has over 23 years of experience in the fields of accounting
and auditing matters of listed companies in Hong Kong. He obtained
a bachelor’s degree of arts in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2001. In November 2015, Mr. Chan obtained an
executive master of business administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since 2017. He is also an associate
member of both the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the
Chartered Governance Institute since June 2021. Mr. Chan worked for
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September 2001 to July 2011 and his
last position held was senior manager in the audit department.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan was the chief financial officer of Lap Kei Engineering (Holdings)
Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1690) from February 2015 to December 2020
and has been the company secretary of such company since January
2018. He was an independent non-executive director of Lai Si Enterprise
Holding Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 2266) from January 2017 to February 2022. Mr.
Chan served as an executive director of Janco Holdings Limited (whose
shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8035) from
October 2019 to December 2020 and served as its company secretary
from October 2019 to May 2021. Mr. Chan joined a private company as
chief financial officer from July 2013 to February 2014 and was appointed
as executive director from March 2014 to April 2015 and was designated
as non-executive director from May 2015 to March 2017. He has also
been a director of McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited since
November 2019.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tse Ho Yue (“Mr. Tse”), aged 44, joined the Group on 1 October
2024 as chief operating officer, overseeing the Group’s day-to-day
operations and strategic execution. Mr. Tse has years of rich experience
in corporate management, cost and risk management, financial
management, real estate asset management, and facilities management.
He is currently the Managing Director of Shenzhen Lask JV Property
Management Ltd. Before joining the Group, he has more than 23 years
of real estate experience in Hong Kong, Mainland China and overseas
from well-known international companies like JLL, DBS and Mapletree
Logistics Trust.

Mr. Tse graduated with a Master’s degree in Housing Management from
City University of Hong Kong in 2013. He is a Chartered Surveyor with
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).

Mr. Tse is currently a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in Luohu District, Shenzhen, a standing
committee member of the Luohu Federation of Industry and Commerce,
a director of the Hong Kong, Macau, and Taiwan Entrepreneurs
Committee of the Luohu Federation of Industry and Commerce, an
executive director of the Luohu Overseas Friendship Association, the
vice president of Shenzhen Luohu District Overseas Chinese Returnees
Association and Shenzhen Greater Bay Area Career Mentor.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Leung Chi Kong (&) (“Mr. Leung”), aged 63, is the assistant
general manager of the Group (operation). He is primarily responsible
for the overall management of sites operations of the Group. Mr.
Leung has over 35 years of experiences in the environmental hygiene
services industry in Hong Kong. He was employed by Reliance Services
Company Limited (currently known as ISS Facility Services Limited),
being a company engaging in the provision of environmental hygiene
related services, as an assistant foreman. He left such company in
February 2001 and the last position held was site manager. Mr. Leung
then joined Best Result Cleaning Services Ltd. (currently known as Best
Result Environmental Services Limited), being a company engaging
in the provision of cleaning services, where he worked as assistant
operations manager in February 2001 and was subsequently promoted
to operation manager in October 2004, where he held such position until
he left the company in September 2006 and joined the Group in February
2007. Mr. Leung has obtained a Certificate Programme on Supervisory
Management from The Hong Kong Management Association in March
2000 and he was awarded a Training Certificate on Safety for Cleansing
Work (managers and supervisors) by the Occupational Safety & Health
Council in December 2009. Mr. Leung also obtained an Aluminum Mobile
Working Platform Training Certificate issued by Origin Production Limited
trading as The Hong Kong Safety Training Association in July 2004 and
held a Construction Industry Safety Training Certificate from June 2004
to June 2007.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Kai Chi (FFEXE) (“Mr. Chow”), aged 56, is the senior finance
manager of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the financial
reporting, financial planning, treasury, financial control matters of the
Group. Mr. Chow obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Business Accounting
in September 1999 from the University of Lincolnshire & Humberside
(currently known as the University of Lincoln), the United Kingdom by long
distance learning. He is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and was admitted as a member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in October 2001.

Mr. Chow has over 30 years of experience in accounting and finance
industry in Hong Kong. He was employed as a clerk in the finance
department by Nanyang Brothers Tobacco Co., Ltd, a tobacco
manufacturer in June 1988. He was promoted to senior clerk in January
1991 and held that position until he left in August 1991. Mr. Chow then
joined Yue Po Engineering Co., Ltd, being a company that provides
kitchen design services and supplies catering equipment as senior clerk
in the accounting department in March 1992 and was promoted to
account officer in October 1992, in which position he remained until he
left such company in March 1995. He then joined Siu Wor Trading Co.
Ltd, being a company engaging in jewellery trading related business as
an accountant in April 1995 and left the company in January 1998. Mr.
Chow subsequently joined Trans Asia Computer Superstore Ltd., being
a company engaging in sales of computer related equipment as an
accountant from June 1998 to August 1999. He then worked as a senior
accountant in Hung Mau Realty & Construction Ltd, being a company
engaging in the provision of general construction works from November
1999 to July 2002. From July 2002 to April 2005, Mr. Chow worked as
an accountant at Broadway Photo Supply Ltd, then being an exporter of
camera and photographic equipment. He then worked as an accountant
in Suga Electronics Limited, being a company providing advanced
electronics manufacturing services, from May 2005 to August 2005 and
joined the Group in November 2005.

EFhEREEE

BEERE (ALE)) 56 AEES
MHBREBE - RETEEERAEEARHFRS
BRI EB - MBEEZEE -BALE
R1999F o BB EREE2EN A X BREH
University of Lincolnshire & Humberside (37
BB K E(University of Lincoln)) #1183
B NBEE T ﬁﬁ?%%%‘;‘uﬁﬂﬁ“”*

BT R2001F10B A RBET ARG
SHEIAEEE o

BREHRBAFE BT RERMERE -
MR1988F6 R ERARm IR B EERMNA
RAR (BEREm) MBI E > 11991
FIEEHRASHRBET —BEEITZBESE
1991F8E BB o 2 %8 > B R £ 70199243
BMAREBEIRERR2LE (—RIEHEFER
SR RBEEENREFEN QL) BEZEI
SR E > M1992FE10BE BEF AT st £1E
W—EETZBEE19095E38 BZ AR B
Boz B > HIMM995F4BMANRKTE G H

RAB (—RUESHKEEZHEAEBHLE)
EEG SN L1998F 18 B2 A B BER -

B E HBF1998E6H £199948 8 M1 A
ROBMMERAR (— RN EHE BHAE
AR BRIAT) #ED D > RBIN19994F
11B E2002F 7B ETBRMERERBRA
8 (—XEHR—REETENRE) ahE
5t B 0 20024E7 B £20055F48 » @ L E#E
FEEZERESIMBERAR (ERAHEE KR
BEKREHOR) S5TE0 » AR H2005F58
FE2005F8HEEEEBETERAR (—K
REACEEFEERFN AT Bt R
200511 BMAKRER

ANNUAL REPORT 2025
2025F F 3R

45



46

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business of the Group is provision of environmental hygiene
and related services and airline catering support services in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group’s business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and
likely future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout
this annual report and in particular under the following separate sections:

(@ review of the Company’s business and financial position, and
development and future prospects of the Company’s business
are shown in the “Chairperson’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report;

(b)  the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are shown in
the sub-section headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” below;

(¢) the Group’s environmental policies and performance are shown in
the sub-section headed “Environmental Policies and Performance”
below;

(d) the Group’s key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers are shown in the sub-section headed “Relationships with
Key Stakeholders” below;

(e) the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
are shown in the sub-section headed “Compliance with Laws and
Regulations” below; and

(M details of key performance indicators are shown in the “Financial
Highlights” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

No significant events that have an effect on the Group subsequent to the
year ended 31 March 2025.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of operations and
growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties directly or
indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The risk factors set out
below are those that could result in the Group’s businesses, financial
conditions, results of operations or growth prospects differing materially
from expected or historical results. Such factors are by no means
exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be other risks in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which may not
be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Operational Risks

The Group operates in a competitive environmental hygiene services
sector where contracts are typically secured through tender processes
with durations of one to three years. The operating environment presents
challenges, including pricing pressures as customers prioritize cost
efficiency, along with a growing trend of some clients handling hygiene
services internally rather than outsourcing. To remain competitive, the
Group emphasizes service quality, supported by internal and external
audits, staff training, and a dedicated customer service team to address
client needs. However, market conditions and the need to continually
adapt service offerings introduce uncertainties in contract renewals and
profitability.

Another key operational consideration is the Group’s reliance on skilled
frontline staff, where labor market challenges and workforce turnover
could impact service consistency. To support employee retention,
the Group has implemented measures such as career development
programs, performance-based incentives, and succession planning.
Additionally, it is exploring options to supplement its workforce through
approved labor import schemes. While these efforts help mitigate risks,
workforce stability remains an ongoing focus area to ensure reliable
service delivery.

Compliance Risks

The Group is exposed to litigation claims including employees’
compensation claims and common law personal injury claims and
insurance coverage of the Group may not adequately protect it against
certain risks.

Through close monitoring of various legal and regulatory pronouncements
from the government by its legal and compliance personnel, the Group
is able to keep itself updated with various regulatory requirements and
complies with local labour laws and regulations such as the Employment
Ordinance and Employees’ Compensation Ordinance. A comprehensive
work safety management and supervision system is also established for
enhancing safety performance. In addition, the management will review
the insurance coverage on an ongoing basis.
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Financial Risks

Please also refer to note 32 to the financial statements for the financial
risks facing by the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Employees

The Company treats human resources as the Group’s valuable assets.
Training and retaining good employees are always at top priorities.

Besides on-the-job trainings and funding for continuous learning, two
committees are set up to ensure good physical and psychological health
of our staffs. Workshops are held regularly to raise staff’'s awareness
of occupational health and safety. The risk-free working environment is
guaranteed by the certification of OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health and
Safety Management System. In addition, the Company also organizes a
range of recreational activities so as to foster team spirit.

Customers

Keeping strong relationship with the customers is critical to maintain the
competitiveness of the Group.

For servicing industry with human as the main concern, it is vital to have
an independent, comprehensive quality assurance mechanism in order to
maintain high level of service, in which rule-of-man style and subjectivity
in the old days can be eliminated. In view of this, the Company has
established an evaluation mechanism with mutual assessment by internal
and external teams of professionals audits. In order to achieve a set
standard of service and customers’ satisfaction, the work is monitored
and reviewed in various aspects including provision of resources, training,
infrastructure and working environment, with customers’ expectation as
the foundation. For services that are not up to high standard, remedial
action will be advised and implemented with continuous improvement
follow through. Also, preventive measure will be formulated as future
guidelines.

Suppliers and Sub-contractors

The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers and sub-contractors
which are selected with reference to, among other things, material/
service quality, reliability and price. The Group performs annual evaluation
on the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors with respect to raw
materials/service quality, reliability and timely delivery.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has been putting unremitting efforts in environmental protection
by introducing sustainable machineries, devices and equipment for
operation.

The Group maintains close collaborations with green groups and
chambers of commerce to promote the concept of sustainable
development. The Group’s determination is marked by the ISO 14001
Environmental Management System accreditation obtained in 2001.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board was unaware of any non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published financial results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025, together with
the financial results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
four years ended 31 March 2024, is set out on page 156 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 and the state
of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 72 to 76 of this annual report.

The Board resolved not to recommend a final dividend (2024: HKO.727
cents per Share) for the year ended 31 March 2025.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 21 August 2025 (the
“2025 AGM”), the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 15 August 2025 to Thursday, 21 August 2025, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2025 AGM, all transfers of
Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 14 August 2025.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2025 are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 March 2025, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$6,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary Shares was
600,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

There was no movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 March 2025.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2025 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 74 of this annual report and note
26 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2025, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to the Shareholders amounted to approximately HK$48 million.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to allow
Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profit and for the Company
to retain adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Company would consider various factors
including but not limited to the Group’s overall results of operation,
financial condition, working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements, liquidity position, future expansion plans, general
economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group. Any declaration
and payment as well as the amount of the dividends will be subject
to any restrictions under the applicable laws and regulations and the
Company’s constitutional documents. The Company does not have any
predetermined dividend distribution proportion or distribution ratio. Any
future declarations of dividends may or may not reflect the Company’s
historical declarations of dividends and will be at the absolute discretion
of the Directors.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/
or cancel the dividend policy at any time, and the dividend policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date
of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Mr. Chung Koon Yan
Mr. Chan Chun Sing
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Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, Ms. Sze Tan Nei,
Mr. Ang Ming Wah and Mr. Sze Wai Lun shall retire from the office of
Director by rotation at the 2025 AGM. Ms. Sze Tan Nei and Mr. Sze Wai
Lun, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2025 AGM.
Mr. Ang Ming Wah confirmed that he would like to devote more time to
pursue his personal pursuits , therefore, he would not offer himself for re-
election at the 2025 AGM and would retire upon conclusion of the 2025
AGM.

The Company has renewed the service contract with each of the
executive Directors for a term of three years commencing on 16 March
2023 unless terminated by not less than three months prior written notice
served by either party on the other or otherwise in accordance with the
terms of the service contract. The Company has also renewed the letter
of appointment with each of the independent non-executive Directors for
a term of two years commencing on 16 March 2024 unless terminated
by not less than three months prior written notice served by either party
on the other or otherwise in accordance with the terms of the letter
of appointment. Each of such appointments is subject to the rotation
and retirement provisions in the articles of association of the Company.
Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meetings of the Company pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company.

Each of Ms. Sze Tan Nei and Mr. Sze Wai Lun, being the Directors
proposed for re-election at the 2025 AGM, does not have service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
the payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 38 to 45 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined under
paragraph 15 of Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules) to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is or was a party, and in
which a Director or an entity connected with a Director, or the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, is or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted at 31 March 2025 or at any time during the year ended 31
March 2025.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed at 31 March 2025 or at any time during the year ended 31
March 2025.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” below,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of
this annual report was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices; provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter
in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said
persons.

Save for the above, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2025
and up to the date of this annual report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) being
in force for the benefit at any of the Directors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or any of the directors of an associated company
(if made by the Company).
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements. The Remuneration Committee will review and recommend
the Board the remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors
and senior management with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities, contribution, and time devoted to the Group and the
overall performance of the Group.

The Directors and senior management may also be granted options
under the share option scheme of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed on 21
February 2017, the principal terms of the pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were approved and adopted. The
purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to aid the Company in
retaining key and senior employee of the Group. Principal terms of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were set out in the Prospectus and note
27 to the financial statements. An aggregate of 192,000 share options at
an exercise price of HK$0.42 per Share, being the offer price under the
Share Offer, were granted on 23 February 2017 to an executive Director
and certain employees of the Group. No further options will be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option RIEE X AR ERBERET 2B H ZBE
Scheme are as follows:

BT

Number of Share Options
BREHE
Outstanding  Exercised
Outstanding Exercise  Cancelled Lapsed as at Price
Category of as at 1 April during during during 31 March  per Share
participants 2024 the year the year the year 2025 Option Exercisable Period
120245 1420255 =30
4818 RER RER RER 38318 fafgtE
SEEER *T EfT i P35 E35) T 7fE
Director
BF
Ang Ming Wah 64,000 = = = 64,000 HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
(Note)
AR 042#7w  201783816HE20279F3815H
(FizE)
Sub-total 64,000 - - - 64,000
gt
3 Employees in 80,000 = - - 80,000 HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
aggregate (Note)
Ehaza 0427 201783A 160 £202743H 158
(Fff=E)
Sub-total 80,000 - - - 80,000
et
Total 144,000 - - - 144,000
st
Note: N

All holders of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may only FiEREE R ABE SR BRET R ENEBERE
exercise their options in the following manner:

ZHRBEANEZUT AR TEREZERE

(@  50% of the options granted are exercisable during the period from 16 March ~ (a)  50%HY E % | i iR # 7] j22017F3H16H &

2017 to 15 March 2027; and

2027F3H15HHAEITHE ; &

(o)  the remaining 50% of the options granted are exercisable during the period from  (b) Tl 8R50%H9 B 1% t f& B #£ 5] 122018538 16 H
16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027.

ZE202743815HHIBTTE ©
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Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved by a resolution of the sole Shareholder
passed on 21 February 2017. No options under the Share Option
Scheme have been granted since its adoption.

Summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as
follow:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers
substantial shareholders, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of the
Group and to promote the success of the business of the Group.

Participant of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant, adviser, substantial shareholder, distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider of
the Group, options to subscribe at a price calculated in accordance
with paragraph (c) below for such number of Shares as it may
determine in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be
at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the option, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (i) the nominal value of Share
on the date of grant of the option.

Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.
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(e)

U]

(9)

(h)

Maximum number of Shares of the Company available for
issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 60,000,000 Shares, represent 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Vesting period of option

The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period for
which an option must be held before an option can be exercised.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing on 21 February 2017, subject to early
termination provisions contained in the Share Option Scheme.

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2025, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code to be notified to the Company and Stock Exchange, were
as follows:

() Long position in the Shares

ESERFETHRAEBRTATE
B 1E A1 A8 B SR B 2 Bz 17 ~ 4B R
R REFZETRRE

R2025FE3831H  EFERARBEFEITH
AERARBREEAAE ZE (EERE
% B BR B 155 SEXVER) 2 B& 1D ~ MERARR D &
EETHEBIREE S MBS RA EXVIET
K8 BB B G KA B) K Bk 3 FlT 2 M 2 T K
B (BERERESSNPERY ZZER
NEEFARABEBZEGTIXR) > HIR
B SRIE R FEI2MEBERNZIEX
Frat St MRz R XA > NIREZLEST
B 2 3R E BT AN B R B 32 T 2 M 3 303k
2UTF

() RERANEE

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest

Number of
Shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage

of interest in
the Company

shares held/
interested in

Fi¥s BB

EEMRRGD, (AEAREER
B4 515 #EmE MR G#E ‘A B2
Ng Sing Mui Interest of a controlled corporation; 432,000,000 72%

Settlor of a discretionary trust (Note 1)

REELE RELEER  2REEMETE A (Misk1) 432,000,000 72%
Sze Tan Nei Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 2) 432,000,000 72%
iipm 2EEFEZEmA (fEE2) 432,000,000 72%
Sze Wai Lun Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 3) 432,000,000 72%
T 12 2REEFEZEA (IE3) 432,000,000 72%
Ang Ming Wah Beneficial owner (Note 4) 64,000 0.01%
HAEAEE BmEA A (i) 64,000 0.01%
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(I) Long position in the ordinary shares of
associated corporations
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R zZEEERNGTE

Number of
Name of associated shares held/ Percentage
Name of Directors corporation Capacity/nature of interest interested in of interest
Fr¥s/ BA
R e
EENS 1EEEE BT 515/ ity R & E Bt
Ng Sing Mui Sze’s Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation; 1 100%
Settlor of a discretionary trust
REEE MR ERAERAT RErERD , 2RERYE 1 100%
TEA
Rich Cheer Development Limited  Beneficial owner 1 100%
SIRNEREBRAT BmBEAA 1 100%
Sze Tan Nei Sze’s Holdings Limited Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 1 100%
T ERERBRAT 2REFET@A 1 100%
Sze Wai Lun Sze’s Holdings Limited Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 1 100%
At ERERBRAT 2REFET@A 1 100%

Notes: HYSE -

1. All the 432,000,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings 14l 5432100109059 A 15}}_1’:] B B £G4 %
Limited, which is in turn held by Rich Cheer Development Limited ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlgﬁﬁ%ﬁ QY EE%HQE%%
acting as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust &z ﬁ/[ﬁ%@? PR //—\\ﬁ (f BE EE%(EME
is a discretionary trust set up by Madam Ng Sing Mui as settlor and EEE:]%EE A) #H °\ﬁﬂf59f‘ﬁﬂ5 B S
Rich Cheer Development Limited as trustee on 8 January 2015. The Bl + (f’lf?"%ﬂ?}i%% BN REBRER
beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai FBEQ\E ({)Eﬁ'%ﬁiﬁz\) 5291_5#”%85
Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. Madam Ng Sing Mui is the settlor of the Sze I A 2R ST ﬁ’fﬂ EE%_;BME EEBE%@
Family Trust and the sole director of Sze’s Holdings Limited and therefore ABIE (B ':P)_@ 1%) ﬁﬁ%fﬁﬂf%ﬂ] ﬁﬂlwﬁ
Madam Ng Sing Mui is deemed or taken to be interested in all the ﬁi: %Ei*%ﬁ:t%ﬁm&%ﬁ%%%%ﬂ’ﬁ?
432,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the EEE AR RERAR A ”ﬁzi
purposes of the SFO. Madam Ng Sing Mui is also the sole director and gi 3 I‘HZ ¥ *\EE%% E/z\%ﬁfaﬂ% Bl REE
shareholder of Rich Cheer Development Limited. BREWRBHAEFRNEERERARA

5] B 1 % A Y FT 5432,000,0008% & 12
PR ER c RESZITASNERE
BRABNM—FEEMRKER o

2, Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Ms. Sze Tan 2. ﬁ@ﬁfﬁﬁi%%@#i%g% ° i}
Nei is one of the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore ﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁ\&%ﬁﬂ%%%%ﬁm/&\z— ’
she is deemed or taken to be interested in all the 432,000,000 Shares EE ) 1R }E Eﬁ%ﬁgﬂﬁﬂ%%;%ﬁﬁ_ﬁ%
beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO. NEFERMEERARARBHER B

FT5432,000,000/& F& 15 HH #E B HE o ©

3. Mr. Sze Wai Lun is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Mr. Sze Wai Lun 3. ﬁf{%fﬁ?ﬁi%%@%*#iﬂ@iﬂ? ° e &
is one of the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore he @ %i%ﬁﬁ\&%ﬁﬂa%ﬁ@%ﬁm/&z— i
is deemed and taken to be interested in all the 432,000,000 Shares EE ) *%\?% BHERASR WJ;%%;KZ_?E?%
beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO. REFRERZERERABDRGEES D

P H432,000,0008% B2 17 AR #E A 2t ©
4. Mr. Ang Ming Wah is interested in 64,000 Shares which may be allotted 4. HBRZERE IR E RARE SRR

and issued to him upon full exercise of all options granted to him under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company nor their associates had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
each of them has taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO), or which would be required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required to be
kept therein, or which would be required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be naotified to the Company and the Stock Exchange as at
31 March 2025.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’/

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2025, the following persons (other than the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company pursuant to provision of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the Shares

Fr £ SCPRT i 88 & 9 > 122025538 31
B BBEEERANBDEETHAE
FHENHBANESRT R EBH
(EERBHFRBEKRASEXVE) B9
B HERMKRESTHHRETMAR
58 5 R BB X SEXVER F7 R85 &
BHEAAB MBI ER KA
(BEMREZEREBEESRPEKE
ZEBRNWEENEABEENERE R
XA) > ARIEESH R E KG5352
BESERZEREETEEZER
MRzEEEXE  RIREZETA
BHERNB MMz R R E ©

FTERE HMMALREQH
R 1R B AR RABR (R MO m Rk B

R2025%F3831H  UMTFAL (BEEKRER
Bl EEITEABRIN R AR E RS S48 R
H B IRIERE S5 RS RGIEXVER 2
3N HIE X EARABIIEN R XS
RESLNBIEE S KB E K SE3361E BT
FEENSEMINERE RS

RGN E

Number of Percentage of

Shares held/ interest in

Name of Shareholders Capacity/nature of interest interested in the Company

FR¥s B E WA

R T B3 #EtE RN EE DR BE DL

Sze’s Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 432,000,000 72%

MERERERAR EmEAA 432,000,000 72%
Rich Cheer Development Interest of controlled corporation as the trustee of

Limited the Sze Family Trust (Note) 432,000,000 72%

SIRERBRAR REEEERD > FAMEREELEZTEA () 432,000,000 72%

Note: The entire issued share capital of Sze's Holdings Limited is held by Rich Cheer
Development Limited as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust
is a discretionary trust established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The beneficiaries of
the Sze Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. By
virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Rich Cheer Development Limited
is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares beneficially owned by Sze’s
Holdings Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, the Directors were not
aware that there was any person (not being a Director or chief executive
of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, each of Sze’s Holdings Limited, Rich
Cheer Development Limited, Madam Ng Sing Mui, Ms. Sze Tan Nei and
Mr. Sze Wai Lun (the “Controlling Shareholders”) have entered into the
deed of non-competition undertakings (the “Deed of Non-competition
Undertakings”) in favour of the Company (for its own and on behalf of all
members of the Group) on 23 February 2017, pursuant to which each of
the Controlling Shareholders, irrevocably and unconditionally, undertakes
and covenants with the Company that during the period that the Deed of
Non-competition Undertakings remains effective, each of the Controlling
Shareholders shall not, and shall procure that none of his/her/its
associates (except any member of the Group), directly or indirectly (other
than through the Group) engage, participate or hold any right or interest
in or render any services to or otherwise be involved, whether as a
shareholder, director, employee, partner, agent or otherwise (as the case
may be), in any business in competition with or likely to be in competition
with the Group’s existing business activity and any business activities
which may be undertaken by the Group from time to time and/or which
any member of the Group may undertake in Hong Kong from time to
time. Details of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings have been set
out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders —
Deed of Non-competition Undertakings” in the Prospectus.

The Company has received the annual declaration from each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their respective compliance with
the terms of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during the year
ended 31 March 2025. The independent non-executive Directors, having
reviewed the annual declarations and made reasonable enquiry, were
satisfied that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the terms
of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during the year ended 31
March 2025.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS OR
SUB-CONTRACTORS

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the percentages of (i) revenue
attributable to the Group’s major customers; and (i) cost of services
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers or sub-contractors are set out
below:

TERPRRUEBENSEE

HE2025FE3H31ALEEE ) (FEBEXE
EREENRG RV AEBEZTEHERR D
BEEGREREANE D EEIMT

Approximate percentage of

the Group’s
ERERNBAE R

Revenue Cost of Services
& AR #%5 Bk 245
The largest customer BAER 55.9% -
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREEGE 73.7% =
The largest supplier or sub-contractor BAEERESSEE - 12.3%
Five largest suppliers or sub-contractors in aggregate A KHEFER DB E S =t - 23.7%

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
number of issued Shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers, five largest suppliers and sub-contractors noted above.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company is incorporated.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 March 2025, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors
nor the Controlling Shareholders nor any of their respective close
associates that compete or may compete with the business of the Group
and any other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may
have with the Group during the year ended 31 March 2025.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company entered into the
following transaction with entities which are connected persons (as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of the Company, and such
transaction constituted connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

On 7 June 2024, Perma Growth Investment Limited (“Perma Growth”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “SPA”) with Lask JV Holding Co. Ltd (“Lask
JV Holding”) and Lask JV Facility Management Services Limited (“Lask
JV”). Pursuant to the SPA, Perma Growth conditionally agreed to
acquire from Lask JV Holding a 37.5% equity interest in Lask JV for
a cash consideration of RMB18,375,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,809,185 based on the exchange rate on 7 June 2024, the
“Acquisition”). Completion of the Acquisition took place on 14 November
2024.

Lask JV is 99.99% owned by Lask JV Holding and 0.01% by Mr. Sze
Wai Chun Johnny (“Mr. Johnny Sze”), and Lask JV Holding is wholly
owned by Mr. Johnny Sze. Mr. Johnny Sze is spouse of Madam Ng Sing
Mui (an executive Director and the chairperson of the Company, one of
the controlling shareholders of the Company) and father of Ms. Sze Tan
Nei and Mr. Sze Wai Lun (both being executive Directors and controlling
shareholders of the Company), accordingly, Mr. Sze, Lask JV Holding
and Lask JV are connected persons of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules; and the Acquisition constituted a discloseable and
connected transaction of the Company.

Except for the Acquisition, the Group had not entered into any other
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions that were
not exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 March 2025.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group had also entered into
certain transactions with parties regarded as “related parties” under
the applicable accounting standards. All related party transactions
were not regarded as connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules or were exempt from reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it has complied with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these
related party transactions are disclosed in notes 14 and 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the public float as required under the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 March 2025 and has continued to maintain such float
as at the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

There has been no change in auditor in the preceding three years.
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 have been
audited by BDO Limited, who will retire, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the 2025 AGM. A resolution will be proposed at the
2025 AGM to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson and Executive Director

27 June 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{55 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG
LIMITED
KIEZERBABRAR

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 155, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. :

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to accounting policies in note 4.9 and note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Service income from provision of environmental hygiene and related
services and airline catering support services is recognised when the
services are rendered. We have identified recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of
the Group and there is an inherent risk over the recognition of revenue by
the management to meet specific targets or expectations.

Our responses:

Our audit procedures to address the revenue recognition included the
followings:

° evaluating the appropriateness of the recognition policy with
reference to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 15;

° inspecting, on sample basis, customer contracts to identify terms
and conditions relating to the provision of services;

° performing substantive analytical procedures to assess whether
the recognised service revenue was in line with the expected level;

. substantiating service income recognised during the year, on
sample basis, by checking details of the service income being
recognised with relevant the underlying documentation, including
service contracts, service records and invoices;

e assessing, on a sample basis, the service income recorded before
and after the financial year end date with the relevant underlying
documentation, including service contracts and service records,
to verify whether the service income had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period; and

o obtaining an understanding on management’s processes and key
control in respect of the revenue recognition.

o b
-
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Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Refer to accounting policies in note 4.7(ii), note 5.3, note 17 and note
32(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had trade receivables amounted to
HK$89,573,000 after loss allowance of expected credit losses (“ECL”) of
HK$557,000.

The management has engaged an independent professional valuer to
assist them to perform the ECL assessment of trade receivables. The
loss allowance are based on management’s estimate of lifetime ECL
of trade receivables by taking into account the credit loss experience,
ageing of receivables, debtors’ creditworthiness and repayment history
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date, all of which involve a significant degree
of management judgements.

Since the assessment of ECL of trade receivables is a subjective area
which requires the management’s judgement and uses of estimates, and
in view of the significance of the amount to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, we considered this as a key audit matter.

Our responses:

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of trade
receivables included:

o obtaining an understanding on management’s processes in
respect of estimation of ECL;

° evaluating the Group’s policies for estimating the credit loss
allowance with reference to the requirements of HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments;

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the trade
receivables’ ageing report were classified within the appropriate
ageing bracket by comparing individual items in the report with
underlying documentation;

o assessing appropriateness of management’s estimate of credit
loss allowance by examining the information provided by the
management to derive the key parameters and assumptions of

~ the ECL model adopted by the management, including checking
historical default data, assessing management’s estimated
loss rates and assessing how reasonably management has
incorporated forward-looking information in the ECL allowance;
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° reperforming the calculation of the loss allowance as at 31 March
2025 based on the Group’s credit loss allowance policies; and

° assessing the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent external valuer.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS
Accounting Standards as issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of aocouﬁting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.

S WINSON HOLBINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B HENER S

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

° plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the group as a basis for forming an opinion
on the group financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the work performed for the
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our

audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Wong Kwok Wai

Practising Certificate Number PO6047

Hong Kong, 27 June 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEEENER

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

2025 2024

20254 20244

Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000

iz FHET FET

Revenue g 7 478,619 470,707
Cost of services AR5 AL (435,957) (404,147)
Gross profit EF 42,662 66,560
Other income and gains H A K I 7 2,403 3,235
General operating expenses — RS RS (55,475) (56,448)
Finance costs & A A 8 (72) (72)
Share of results of an associate SME—REBE AT ES 16 149 -
(Loss)/profit before income tax IRFRSIR AT (B538) & 9 (10,333) 13,275
Income tax expense FRriEMEE Y 10 (590) (2,378)

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable ZSAFEE AEIEER
to owners of the Company (B518) &%) (10,923) 10,897

~ Other comprehensive income, HEFEEMHEEREN P P
~ item that will not be reclassified Hih2mma - i S )
- subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of provision for long EtEEHRRBSRE

- service payments 2,520
~ Other comprehensive income, HBTFSEHSETEZEN
items that may be reclassified Hithemuss :

subsequently to profit or loss:
~ Exchange differences on translation of ~ #EEIINB AR ELZ

- foreign subsidiaries EREE (14)
Share of other comprehensive income D& — A= A B HAM
of an associate 2@ E (26)

FREMEEWE @ HFRE

| Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

. Total comprehensive income HBEArgEmSEEERN
~ for the year attributable to Hith 2wz -

owners of the Company (8,443)

- (Loss)/earnings per share =k (58 &F
- Basic - &R (HK1.8 cents)  HK1.8 cents |

— Diluted HK1.8 cents |

(HK1.8 cents)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBIKRR

As at 31 March 2025 /2202543831 H

2025 2024
20254 20244
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’ 000
iz FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEKAR
Non-current assets ERMEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BMEREE 14 55,187 59,053
Prepayments SN 18 1,528 392
Deferred tax assets BEERIBEEE 24 - 133
Interest in an associate R—EBE AR 2 #Exm 16 21,225 -
Contingent consideration receivable FEUR IR RAE 16 228 -
78,168 59,578
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =5 15 304 555
Trade receivables B SR Ia 17 89,573 121,016
Prepayments, deposits and other FEMEIE « e R EHME
receivables [ERE] 18 7,105 6,167
Amounts due from an associate R — B A B 2 FE 16 1,334 -
Tax recoverable QL E e 2,424 1,153
Cash and cash equivalents REFRIRESZEEY 19 99,110 93,559
199,850 222,450
Current liabilities Bt =Nl
Trade payables B 5 (20 20 17,252 18,680
Accruals, deposits and other payables  FEETEE « mE K

Lease liabilities
Bank borrowings
Tax payable

H AT RRIE
HEER
RITRER

FE(S IR IE

20

49,995
533

30

67,810

Net current assets

MREBEEFHE

132,040

167,564

~ Total assets less current liabilities

HWEERRHER

210,208

227,142

Non-current liabilities
- Lease liabilities
Provision for long service payments
Deferred tax liabilities

FrRBEE
HEERE
RERBSEHE
BIERIAR S

417
9,537
1,759

950
13,477
1,415

11,713

15,842

~ Net assets

FEE

198,495

211,300

- EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

i
R
i

6,000
192,495

6,000

Total equity

fE 4B EE

198,495

i itk >

205,300 -

211,300




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEmEER

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

Share
Share Share Merger option Translation  Retained
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve* profits* Total

Bx  ROEE SHEE BRERE EAMRE KRR st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$O00  HK$'000

FET TET TERT TET TET TET TET
(note 25) (note 26) (note 26) (note 26) (note 26)
(fizkos)  (Mizkoe)  (WEkoe)  (MRoe)  (PfEE26)

At 1 April 2023 202354510 6,000 48,177 20917 26

136,165 211,285

Final dividend approved and B4t o B 7K HB

paid (note 12) RS (fsH12) - - - - - 0900 (9,900
Profit for the year FERER - - - - - 10,897 10,897
Other comprehensive income B2 Ell 7 - - - - - (982) (982)

Total comprehensive income  F A2 AN AL
for the year - - - -

9,915 9,915

At31March2024and  H20243F31A R o
1 April 2024 20244518 48177 136,180 211,300

:  Final dividend approved and ~ BHLER B %S
- paid (note 12) RE (3x12) (4,362) 4,362)
- Loss for the year FREE (10,923) (10,923)

Other comprehensive income B2 Bz 2,520

Total comprehensive income 5 /9% F U #4848
for the year (8,408) (8443) -

~ At31 March 2025 12025%35310 s tendes Loel




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FARERER

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3831HILFEE

2025 2024
20254 20245
Notes HK$’°000 HK$'000
B 5 FHT FET
Cash flows from operating activities K& ;EENIREFE
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRFT1SIRAT (B518) i (10,333) 13,275
Adjustments for: HEE .
Interest income FMEWA 7(c) (1,357) (2,615)
Interest expenses FMERE 8 72 72
Write off of property, plant and WEEYIZE ~ BB R sk
equipment 9 20 7
Gains on disposal of property, HEVE BERSZEZ
plant and equipment g 9 (187) -
Depreciation TE 9 6,651 6,344
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment B o eI R EEE
loss on trade receivables, net (B em) 81 > 358 9 (430) 760
Share of results of an associate DME—E#E AT ES (149) -
Operating (loss)/profit before EEESEHKE
working capital changes (B518) &%) (5,713) 17,843
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERLD,GEMm) 251 (479)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 8 5 FEW =R IE 5/~ (1L H0) 31,873 (40,892)
Increase in prepayments, deposits FENERIE N e
and other receivables EH A e R IEIE N (870) (1,461)
Increase in amounts due from an FEW—REE AT 2
associate FIEIE A0 (251) — el
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B ENAZIE CFL) /1Em (1,428) 4,027

~ Increase in accruals, deposits and

other payables
. (Decrease)/increase in provision
for long service payments

FEStER ~ e RHEME
A RRIELE N
RERBEEHE

CRiZb) /18

10,898

(1,420)

908

2,487

~ Cash generated from/(used in)

operations

~ Interest paid

~ Income tax paid

REmR/ (FRA) RE

BHFE
BIFTEHR

33,340

(11)
(1,354)

(17,567)

(59)
(6,261)

- Net cash generated from/(used in)

operating activities

LEEEFRS (FRA)
REFEH

31,975

(23,887)

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Prepayments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

- Investment in an associate

 Increase in contingent consideration

receivable

~ Advance to an associate

REZPHRETARE
BIF B

BEME BEKRRHE
HEYE BERREZ
PRISTRIA

BEYE BERRHEZ
A MIA
R—BEBMERARZRE
FEM SR B N

B —FE B E A B 2R

1,289
(2,086)
187

(1,528)
(17,093)

(228)
(1,083)

2,430

(27,097) |

Net cash used in investing activities

R E R RSB

(20,542)

(24,814)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mARERE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

2025
20254
HK$’000
FAET

Notes
B EE
Cash flows from financing activities FIEZENIIREHE
Repayment of bank borrowings BIRIRITER 33
Payment of principal portion of lease SRR EaENAEI D
liabilities 33
Payment of interest portion of lease TNEEEENH B
liabilities 33
Dividend paid BRE
Net cash used in financing activities BIE EZSIFTRIREFEE
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HRERIREEEY
and cash equivalents wm, GRiL) 358
Cash and cash equivalents at FMRERASEEBY
beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEHHRER
changes on cash and cash HEeLBYNTE

equivalents

- Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year

ERAEERREEEY

Analysis of balances of cash
and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances
Short-term bank deposits with original
maturity of less than three months

RERAEFB/MERIN

RE RIRITAEER
REHRLOR=EA
FEHASRTTER

2024
20244
HK$’000
FET

(1,568)
216)

(13)
(9,900)

(11,697)

(60,398)

153,957




1.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 31 May 2016. The Company’s shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of business is
Unit 1926, 19/F., Global Plaza, 1 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company, collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 35.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Sze’s Holdings
Limited (“Sze’s Holdings”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and the entire issued share capltal of Sze's
Holdings |s held by Rich Cheer Development lelted a company £
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. GETHERES

2.1 Adoption of amendments to HKFRS 21 KB EMHZHRS EL
Accounting Standards - effective on SFrENZEFT - ©
1 April 2024 2024F4B1BEX
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time REFE  AEBEEXERT
the following amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards JHEEGEAg (E8FE
as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public AE)) BHEZRETEBTHE
Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are effective for the Group’s REEN T EDR > ZFBITH
consolidated financial statements for the annual period REBMPR2024F4B1BBBZE
beginning on 1 April 2024, EHEZ A BERREN
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as Current or B BaEsEARE

HKAS 1 Non-current 2B FIERED
Z1&ET
Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with Covenants STt MiEE S IE R EN
HKAS 1 ZAE15E  BE
ZA&5T
Amendments to Presentation of Financial Statements E5BREFS UEBERERNES -
Hong Kong — Classification by the Borrower 5% (MEE]) ERAHEER
Interpretation 5 of a Term Loan that Contains a ZIERT EREEKXZ

(Rewsed) . ’_ Repayment on Demand Clause THERZ 748
i :Arrtendments to T Lease_l_dablll,ty |n a Sale and Leaseback ' x é%ﬂﬁ% %@*ﬁ@ﬂ'ﬁﬁg




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TSR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFE

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 New standards, interpretations and
amendments that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards, have been issued, but are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s
current intention is to apply these changes on the date they

become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 21
and HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS

1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

HKFRS 18

HKFRS 19

Lack of Exchangeability !

Classification and Measurement
of Financial Instruments ?

Contracts Referencing Nature-
dependent Electricity 2

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards —
Volume 112

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture *

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®

Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures ®

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

< Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027
“ The effective date of these amendments were deferred indefinitely.

Early adoption continues to be permitted.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of these new and amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards. Except for the possible impact on
the adoption of the below new and amendments to HKFRS

Accounting Standards, the directors of the Company so far

concluded that the application of these new and amendments
to HKFRS Accounting Standards will have no material impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TEHRES @

(Continued)

22 EMEMEEKERZH

2.2 New standards, interpretations and

amendments that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
“Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments”

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 will be first applied
for the annual reporting periods beginning on 1 January 2026
and to be applied retrospectively. The amendments clarify
guidance on timing of derecognition of financial liabilities, on
the assessment of cash flow characteristics and resulting
classification and disclosure of financial assets with terms
referencing contingent events including environmental, social
and corporate governance events, and of the treatment of
non-recourse assets and contractually linked instruments.
The Group is still in process of assessing the impact of
these amendments on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

- HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in
~ the Financial Statements”
HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 “F?-re.sentaﬁon of Fmahcnalﬁ

..__{:.Statemeh‘ts" and wil be first @phed for the annual repor;tmg o

l ) '-perlods beglnnlng on 1 Janua[y 2‘027 'Fh,e neﬂf staﬂd’ard
"iptroduced the ;Q?Iowmg new reqmrer;nen A

-vé%%ﬁﬁiﬁm%wfmﬁ%”

2R~ RERIEST @
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RrF5ER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TEHRES @

(Continued)

22 EMEMEEKERZH

2.2 New standards, interpretations and

amendments that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in
the Financial Statements” (Continued)

In addition, all entities are required to use the operating profit
subtotal as the starting point for the consolidated statement
of cash flows when presenting operating cash flows under
the indirect method.

The Group is still in process of assessing the impact of the
new standard, particularly with respect to the structure of
the Company’s consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the
additional disclosures required for MPMs. The Group is also
assessing the impact on how information is grouped in the

consolidated financial statements, including for items currently

labelled as “others”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 3. RRELE @
(c) Functional and presentation currency (c) e BB KR 2K
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong BREAFBEIN GEMBHRETD
Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency AT (TEx) (HinAEAAR
of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest ZWMEEE) 25 M B &8E
thousand (“HK$’000”) except otherwise indicated. HRBEEREAETA (TF87Tl) °
4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. GEtBUR
4.1 Basis of consolidation maR#E
The consolidated financial statements comprise the REVBERREELALT REK
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. BABlZMBER*zx EBATN
Inter-company transactions and balances between group NEIER 7 R & ERE B R B3R s
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated FREHEGEEM BRI TEE
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. i o R ITES B IS B 8E > BEIR
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction BEEEE R ERENZ SR
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in ELER TEERIBRE o

which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

42 SubS|d|ar|es _ 4.2 Mt B AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TSR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.3

4.4

Associates (Continued)

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost, which includes
transaction costs. Thereafter, their carrying amount are
adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change
in the associates’ net assets except that losses in excess
of the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those losses. The
Group’s interest in an associate includes goodwill identified
on acquisition.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in the
acquisition of associates includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred.

Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss durlng the financial
period in which they are |ncurred
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. ZHHE @)

4.4 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 4.4 M¥ -~ BERRE @
Depreciation on the following property, plant and equipment UTFME- - BEREZENITER
is calculated using the straight-line basis to allocate their BEGAFERHFHRANERELE
costs less their residual value over their estimated useful lives. PEBEEREARFFEESTE ©
The useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are ERER FHFEENRITE L
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. RERSBPEN RARE (WE
The useful lives are as follows: &) o ARSI
Leasehold land and Over the shorter of unexpired HET & FE MBS

buildings (note 4.5) term of lease or 50 years BT 505 > U &
(Ft5E4.5) R
Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the related HEEE HRAE GRS
lease term or 5 years 5% > MBI H
Office furniture and 15-25% MRRER 15%E25%
equipment Baia]
Machinery and 25% %28 & 25%
equipment K
Motor vehicles 25% RE 25%
. Other properties leased Over the lease term FIEERANE HEH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TSR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.5

4.6

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The Group measures the right-of-use assets at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

Cost of the right-of-use asset would comprise: (i) the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease liability (see below
for the accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i)
any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial direct
costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of costs to
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFS R R sE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{Z2025F3H31HIEEE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they
are originated. All other financial assets are initially
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. Financial
assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest. There are
two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are classified
and measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business
model. These assets are subsequently measured at
fair value, whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in brofit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TSR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECL based on lifetime ECL. For trade
receivables which ECL are measured on collective
basis, the Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other financial assets at amortised cost, ECL are
based on lifetime ECL except when there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the allowance will be based
on the 12 months ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking |nformat|on
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & ZE202593831H L FE
4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. TEHER @
4.7 M I A @w
(i) THEEREGE@®

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets

(Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 90
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 1 year past
due.

The Group has rebutted the presumptions that credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition
when financial assets are more than 30 days past due
and that financial assets are in default when they are

- more than 90 days past due based on the settlement
~ pattern of the customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025%3H31H LFEE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when:

~the disappea

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)
(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets

(Continued)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are past due for a number of years. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
payables and accruals, deposits and other payables are
: initially measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
e g = ~ costs incurred. They are subsequently measured at

(iii)

S s ‘amortised doét,-,{u§ing t_H'e effective interest method. The
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TSR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8

4.9

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represented cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Revenue and other income

Environmental hygiene and related services
Environmental hygiene services and related services include
public area and office cleaning, waste disposal as well as
specialised services such as external curtain wall and window
cleaning, marble floor maintenance and restoration and pest
management services. In most instance, promised services
in a contract represent a series of distinct services that are
substantially the same with the same pattern of transfer to
the customer and are accounted for as a single performance
obligation. However, where there are contracts with more
than one service that are capable of being distinct and are
distinct within the context of the contract, and those promised
services are not substantially the same, those services are
accounted for as separate performance obligations, and
revenue is allocated to each of the performance obligations
based on relative stand-alone selling prices.

Normally the Group charges customers on a monthly rate
basis and they are required to settle the service fee monthly
in arrears. In general, the Group grants credit period to its
customers ranges from 0 days to 60 days from the date of
billing. The Group has applied the practical expedient not
to recognise any financing element as the period between
the Group’s performance and payment for that performance
is one year or less. Revenue from environmental hygiene
services and related services is recognised over time because
the customer simultaneously received and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group. The Group has also applied
the practical expedient of recognising revenue in the amount
to which the entity has a right to invoice as entity’s right to
consideration from a customer corresponds directly with the
value to the customer of the entity’s performance completed
to date. :
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFS R R sE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{Z2025F3H31HIEEE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i b

4.9 Revenue and other income (Continued)

Environmental hygiene and related services
(Continued)

Where the service contracts give customers the right to
deduct service fees payable if third party service providers
are engaged to rectify defects in the Group’s services or
other matters not to the client’s satisfaction, execution of
outstanding works or if there is delay in completion without
a valid and justifiable reason, service fees may be reduced.
The Group had not experienced any cases that service fees
were materially reduced by customers for the aforesaid
reasons during the current and prior years and it is highly
probable that there will not be a future reversal in the amount
of revenue recognised.

Airline catering support services

For the provision of airline catering support services, the
Group are responsible for the handling of food and non-
food items, including the plating of meals, checking and tray-
setting food and non-food items onto meal tray and inserting
completed meal trays into meal carts. In most instance,
promised services in a contract represent a series of distinct
services that are substantially the same with the same pattern
of transfer to the customer and are accounted for as a single
performance obligation.

Revenue from airline catering support services is
recognised over time because another entity would not
need to substantially re-perform the work that the entity
has completed to date if that other entity were to fulfil the
remaining performance obligation to the customer. The
Group has a right to invoice with reference to its services
provided to the customer at a predetermined rate as stated
in the contract. The Group usually issues invoices to its
customers on a monthly basis with no credit period granted.
The Group’s billings to its customers are invoiced at amounts
that correspond with the value of the Group’s performance
completed to date based on the pre-determined rates as
stated in the service contracts and the Group applies the
practical expedient to simplify disclosure regarding remaining
performance obligations. The Group has applied the practical
expedient not to recognise any financing element as the

~ period between entity’s performance and payment for that

performance is one year or less.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TSR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Revenue and other income (Continued)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
For non credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

4.10 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax. Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences.
Except for initial recognition of assets and liabilities that are
not part of the business combination which affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised, provided
that the deductible temporary differences are not arises from
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction other
than in a business combination that affects neither taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and does not‘give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period. :

TR @
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. TEHEBE @
4.10 Income taxes (Continued) 410 FR1§1R @
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a 2B & A nAH BT RN
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against MIEEEMHENRPREASE B
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income tax levied EHFE—MBEEABWZPE ﬁ
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to Bl MAEERIZFEEELS
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. HEHBAREBEEEREER A

EEMIRE E KRB AR EAEH o

4.11 Employee benefits L1 EERH
() Short term employee benefits (i) SEHEERF
Short term employee benefits are employee benefits EHIEES EFISTES NMES
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be EHAEBRSEE RS
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the B AN RHMES T B
annual reporting period in which the employees render EEH (BEREFRIN o 55
the related service. Short term employee benefits are HESEF N ESRMER
recognised in the year when the employees render the RS EERESD o

related service.

; : -,-fr"’.',--"r,.__' (||) Defined contribution retirement plan (i) EEEHZEAKE 2
SR v LS Contrlbunon"' defined contribution retirement plans O EEHIOR IR B
A are reqogmjse ) eXp ' : 3




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4., FEEEw@
4.11 Employee benefits (Continued) L1 EERF @
(iii) Long service payments (“LSP”) (Continued) (i) EBARE £ (TRHR
BE1) @
The Group’s obligation to LSP is measured at: TEEZ RIARBEEET
BUTAHAE !

Gross LSP obligation which is estimated using
the projected unit credit method discounted
to its present value using yields of government
bond denominated in Hong Kong Dollar that
have maturity dates approximating to the terms
of the liabilities and are denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars which is the currency of the LSP
obligations; less

Negative service costs. Under the Ordinance,
the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
and the MFP Schemes Ordinance, the Group
can offset the acorued beneflts derlved from Ih

— RIRZBEEEE
REEAEAEEE
8 UE#A é"iiﬁ
BHEMBELENE T
(EfRBEEEZE
) st EZBFES
(U BTt E) BEXR
MIRARIRE B

- AERBAS - RE
6 51 ~ B 3¢ 58 0F B 81
 AERERD G
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFS R R sE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{Z2025F3H31HIEEE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

|
x

4.11 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Long service payments (“LSP”) (Continued)

Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss, and
is calculated by applying the discount rate used to
measure the LSP obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the balance of the LSP obligation,
considering the effects of benefit payments during the
period.

Remeasurements of the LSP obligation, including
actuarial gains and losses, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

The offsetting mechanism of accrued benefits derived
from an employer’'s mandatory MPF contributions
against the employer’s LSP obligations would be
abolished with effect from 1 May 2025 (“Transition
Date”). The HKSAR Government launched a scheme to
subsidise a portion of the post-transition LSP payable
by an employer. With reference to the education
guidance published by the HKICPA in January 2025,
the Group consider the LSP Subsidy (as defined in note
23) meets the definition of a government grants and
therefore the LSP is accounted for as a government
grant in accordance with HKAS 20 Accounting for
Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance. After taking into consideration of the
eligibility for LSP, the conditions for the LSP Subsidy
and the recognition threshold in HKAS 20, the Group
determine that the recognition criteria for the LSP
Subsidy is generally met when the Group has paid or is
about to pay the LSP to the employees in accordance
with the Employment Ordinance and is eligible to claim
the related LSP Subsidy from the HKSAR Government.
Where there are specific facts and circumstances
suggesting the recognition criteria is met earlier, the
Group would assess the cases with particular care
in terms of the exercise of judgement regarding the
reasonable assurance threshold in HKAS 20.

WINSON HOLBINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA TSR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;ZE202553H31HILEE
TR @
411 EEEHF @

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4.

4.11 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Other long-term employee benefits
Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in
the liabilities' carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
Accounting Standards requires or permits their inclusion
in the cost of an asset.

4.12 Impairment loss of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and
interest in an associate to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

4.13 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event, which will probably result in an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits that can
be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of resources embo_dyihg economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligationS' the existence of
which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the _probabl'h_ty of

outflow of resources ém_bodying economic benefits is remote.

(iv) HftRHAEEEF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 5. EXRGsHEEt KRR
AND ASSUMPTIONS
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors ERAAEEGH KT KABESE

of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ
from these estimates.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year is set out below.

ARBAESRAMKRSLEZEE
&%ﬁzﬁﬁﬁfﬁf’ﬁtﬂﬂﬁﬁ a5t R R
cZFEMFREMBRRBFEBERL
%ﬁ&?ﬁ%ffEEﬁZHml%T’Etﬂ 'R
ERUGERRZEMS -

DEREERBRZREER T —E
MHREEHRABRBZEANARZ

ERRRNEIEZRIENBREARZ
st TR RZ EMEEZRRAT -

5.1 Estimated useful lives of property, plant 5.1 ¥ % - &k B K % & (it 5
and equipment £ A S HA

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related AEERBEHEHEINESREMZ

depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant and M -BERZEERERTH

equipment based on the historical experience of the actual HBERREEASEBRYE K

: 'useful lives of property, plant and equment of similar nature 5 B2 5% 18 BV 1 51 155 F 4F HA R 4B B

ok and func'ﬂons The G@Upfvwluewse theixdep
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TSR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFE

5. EXGsHEFRER @

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

5.2

5.3

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets, including property,
plant and equipment and interest in an associate, at the end
of each reporting period in accordance with the accounting
policies as disclosed in note 4.12.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
management has to assess whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the
asset value has not been in existence. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amounts of the asset would be
determined as the greater of the fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use, the calculations of which involve
the use of estimates. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and amounts of the future cash
flows and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different from the
amount actually received and profit or loss could be affected
by accuracy of the estimations.

Impairment of trade receivables

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 for
the financial assets measured at amortised cost requires
judgement when determining impairment losses.

The Group’s loss allowances are based on management’s
estimate of the lifetime ECL, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of receivables,
debtors’ creditworthiness and repayment history and
an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date. Changes in
these estimates could have a significant impact on the loss
allowance to be recognised or reversed in future years.

5.2

5.3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

54

5.5

Provision for long service payments

The provision of the long service payment depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis
using a number of assumptions. Any changes in these
assumptions will impact the carrying amount of provision.

Details of key assumptions are disclosed in note 23.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognised
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that

; were |n|t|ally recordsd such dlfferences will affect the current

x tax and deferred tax prowsmn in the genod in WhICh such
il '-deteﬁfnlnatlon is made b s % %

5. EXg

sttt R R & @)

54 RIAARTZ 15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025%3H31H LFEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment
results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” (“HKFRS 8”) are
the same as those used in its consolidated financial statements
prepared under HKFRS Accounting Standards. For the purpose of
monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between
segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
tax recoverable, cash and cash equivalents, interest in an
associate and contingent consideration receivables.

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
bank borrowings and tax payable.

— all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments other
than directors’ emoluments, finance costs related to bank
borrowings, income tax expense, share of results of an

associate and certain other income and expenses |ncurred by _

the head office.

-

6.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEH m@m)
For the year ended 31 March 2025 B E2025F3H31HILEEE
Environmental Airline
hygiene catering
and related support
services services Total
RIEEER &8
1B R AR5 B IRTE Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET
Revenue Iz
Sales to external customers BN ZEIHE 472,003 6,616 478,619
Segment results DEEE 2,116 308 2,424
Directors’ emoluments e (11,283)
Unallocated finance costs FREREMRA (11)
Share of results of an associate DME—EHE AT ER 149
Unallocated corporate income KRB EEWA MBS
~ and expenses, net PRt (1,612)
A et o] Loss before income tax FRFT1SHR A8 (10,333)

Frigtif<

Income tax expense

(590)
' - Loss for the year FREE (10,923)

- Segment assets DAL E 153,584 155,031
~ Interest in an associate Sl =N 21,225
e 1y - Contingent consideration receivable  FEIZIANE 228
- Tax recoverable W EIRIE 2,424
. Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEY 99,110

- Total assets BEE 278,018

Segment liabilities nEBaE
Tax payable FEIRIE

Total liabilities BEMHE

Other segment information Hittr &R
Depreciation neE (6,650)
Additions to non-current assets JEMENE E LN 2,805



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025%3H31H LFEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. oHEFN @

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B F2024F3H31HILEEE
Environmental Airline
hygiene catering
and related support
services services Total
REEER TR S5
TERARRTS SRR 4ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Revenue Wi
Sales to external customers HIMNBRRHE 465,440 5,267 470,707
Segment results DEPEE 24,529 564 25,093
Directors’ emoluments EEfS (10,914)
Unallocated finance costs ROFERE WA 59
Unallocated corporate income FoREERAKRRES

and expenses, net

Profit before income tax

- Income tax expense

Profit for the year

- Segment assets
Tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Bank borrowings

Total liabilities

Other segment information
Depreciation
Additions to non-current assets

PRETIS R AT A

FrSitf<

FREF]

NEEE
ELELE
RERREFEY

REE

NEER
RITERR

BEBER

Hitt EE#
e

IEREEELEMN

185,661

(845)
13,275
(2,378)

10,897

187,316
1,153
93,559 |

282,028 |

69,790
938

70,728




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEH m@m)

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal RNBABREZERAET AEBETE
place of the Group’s operation is in Hong Kong. For the purpose KERBUNREE NIRRT BHHE
of segment information disclosures under HKFRS 8, Hong Kong is REZEFRETHHERIEEM
regarded as the Group’s place of domicile. S EBAWRALEEMEM o

Geographical location of customers is based on the location at =B HIE A E DR 1R 5 AR 75 uth 41k 2 1k
which the services are delivered whilst geographical location of ¥ o P N IE L B AR 32 Y AR 75 i B
non-current assets is determined based on (1) the physical location S MERBHEEZHIBUEHIZE
of the asset (for property, plant and equipment) and (2) location of MEEFEM W E - BEKRRKREM
operations (for prepayments and interest in an associate). =) QREREM IR —EBEA

BIZHEHEME) °

2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue from external customers KEIIBEEURE
Hong Kong E5E 478,403 470,707

Macau P 216

478,619

2025
20254

HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET

. and deferred tax assets) REEE)
Hong Kong 5& 56,715
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) REEARHAME (THRED) 21,225

77,040



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025%3H31H LFEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEENF @

Revenue from customers which individually contributed 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue, are set out as follows:

EREAERKRTE10%H U EHNE R
W &SI

2025 2024

20255 20244

HK$’000 HK$000

THExT FET

Customer A (note 1) ZPA (ME1) 267,462 207,718
Customer B (note 1) ZFB (fy5E1) 49,002 66,760

Note:

(1) They are customers for environmental hygiene and related services for the
years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 7.

GAINS

(@) The Group’s revenue within the s'cope of ,HKFB_S 1f5 _a_re'_. i

recognised as follows: s o i

| Eh e I )

P 5E

(1) HAEZE2025F ;202454383 1H IEF
ENBEEE RERREHNEE °

Wi 32 e HL fth Ut A e U &

2024

20244

HK$’000
FHET

HK$°000
FET

" Environmental hygiene and related RIS KRAERRTS
services

Airline catering support services MEE TR

472,003
6,616

465,440
5,267

478,619 470,707




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS (Continued)

(b)  As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the aggregated amount of
the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts as follows:

TREARS — S A RESD

Expected to be recognised

Uz B EfthUg A Be W &= @)

20255 K72024F3831H » D
EAERREENETHTELY
BEENRZBAEZEWT

2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET

within one year 383,260 371,138

Expected to be recognised TEHRR — R TERR
after one year 302,682 459,594
685,942 830,732

(c) The Group’s other income and gains recognised during the
~ year are as follows:

receivables, net #5[0] » JHEE
. Others Hith

Bank interest income RITHEUA

Sales of scrap materials EE L 3H &

Gains on disposal of property, HEME - BERREZ
plant and equipment &

Reversal of impairment loss on trade B 5 RIS R EEEEE

AERENF AR E MU AR
Wemn gl -

2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT FET

1,357 2,615
336 510
187 -
430 -

93 110

2,403



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RrF5ER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BEIEM A
2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FExT
Interest on bank borrowings IRITERHE 11 59
Interest on lease liabilities HEEENE 61 13
72 72
9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BREFIS#RAI (B518) &EF

(Loss)/profit before income tax for the year has been arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

FRRFTERAT (B518) H A TL 430
B/ (5t A) :

2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET

~ Auditor’'s remuneration

— audit services
— non-audit services

BN &=
—HEst AR
—IFEET IR

600
350

950

' Cost of inventories recognised as expenses

Depreciation

Gains on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Write off of property, plant and equipment

(Reversal of)/provision for impairment loss
on trade receivables, net

- Short-term lease expenses

. Employee costs (including directors’

remuneration):

— Wages, salaries and allowances
— Long service payments (note 23)
— Retirement scheme contributions

A FERE
e

13,216
6,344

HEYE - BB RREBZ W

M~ BB R 8

B B RRERE

(BERem) Bk P

FEHEERMX

EERE (BEESRME)

—TE& fre Rk

—REBRF £ (H5E23)

—RIRETEI AR

277,444 |
3,855
10,548 |

312,998
257
10,968

324,223

291,847




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. FRFrE#AT (B548) & F

(Continued) (48)
Of the wages, salaries and allowances, long service payments ITE #HehkE2h -REARBEERE
and retirement scheme contributions, HK$284,050,000 (2024: Rt 2 =X > 284,050,00078 75 (2024
HK$252,003,000), HK$254,000 (2024: HKS$nil) and HK$9,909,000 £F 1 252,008,000/ 7T) » 254,000 7T
(2024: HK$9,553,000) have been included in cost of services (20244 : 1) /&9,909,0007% 7T
respectively and HK$28,948,000 (2024: HK$25,441,000), (2024% : 9,553,0007 7T) 92 Bl 5 A BR
HK$3,000 (2024: HK$3,855,000) and HK$1,059,000 (2024: AL > LU 28,948,0007T (20244 :
HK$995,000) have been included general operating expenses 25,441,000 7T) ~ 3,000 7T (2024
respectively. 4F : 3,855,000 7t) K& 1,059,000 7T
(20244 : 995,000 7T) 2 BlEt A— &
EiERE o
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FREfiBI
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in accordance with two- EANISN B 2AF 10 M ARG 5 IE &
tiered profits tax rate regime. The first HK$2,000,000 of assessable BoPMEFEFE AEEEERER
profits of a qualifying entity of the Group is taxed at 8.25% and 2 E2,000,00078 FofER R 5 )328.25%
the assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 are taxed at 16.5% Z M EGMFRIE > M8 52,000,00074
for both years. The assessable profit of other subsidiaries in Hong ToZ FER IR A 1%16.5% 2 TR E AR
3 Kong are taxed at 16.5%. HeHMRNEBEBZMB AR 2 ERR
ot ‘g ; EFI216.5% 2 FREBMIRIE o

7 RC eér'pora"ce yﬁcorne tax has been e
ﬁrowded.,t-)y tI'Te Groupas the Grou &ge’ rie—eshmat d ass ssable
; ;ap%ﬁs ansfng in or denved_,fﬁom Ma a s

HK$’000
FET

" Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BRHAMIBE—FEBRER
Current tax — under-provision in prior years BIEAMRIE— BT EERH
TR

Deferred taxation (note 24) FEIEFRIE (M 5E24)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025%3H31H LFEE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. RS A @

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting (loss)/ FiIEMAE AR ERREFENG
profit at applicable tax rate: (E518) aFHER

2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETISMAT (B518) EF) 13,275

Tax at applicable tax rates BEBREHR 2,025
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERMMANRFE R E (431)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR NN B T E 336
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences FE2 O] J5 B S =281

not recognised M (111
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIEBENRF R E 442
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREHIE 126
Tax concession MIBEER

PSRRI




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND

N EFHERSHEEREM

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS £
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEFM=E
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonus  contributions Total
A
ik Hitiig# BB BIREIRR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TAER TEL FEL TER

Year ended 31 March 2025
Executive directors:
Madam Ng Sing Mui

Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

~Independent non-executive
~ directors:

- Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
~ Mr. Chung Koon Yan

- Mr. Ghan Chun Sing

HZE202553A31HLLERE
BTES.
REEZT
ML T
HEEELE
HRREE

BUFMTES !
REREE

BEAKE
RRELE

= Total

l%\.p\ §+

Year ended 31 March 2024
Executive directors:
Madam Ng Sing Mui

- Ms. Sze Tan Nei

3 Mr. Ang Ming Wah

ko3 Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent non-executive
directors:

. Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen

Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Chan Chun Sing

HE2024F3R31AILEE
nrESE:
RERYLT
REL L
HEBELE
HEeRLE

BUFMTES !
RERSEE

BEAKE
RRELE

- 3,908
- 3,131
- 1,613
- 1,172

240 -
240 -

- 195
- 157

4,108
3288 |
1613 |8
1,190

240
240
240

Total

l%\.p\ §+

720 9,824

- 370

10914



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;E2025F3831HIEEE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND 1. EEZMENRSREIEEMN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2024: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in note 11(a) above. The
emoluments of the remaining one (2024: one) individual was
as follows:

£ )

(b) AfUE#HF AL

rEBAURSME A LS T
iI (20244 : IUfiI) BAAT]ES -

HE &8 EXXisE11(a) o 87 T

—A{iI (20244 : —1iI) A THIBNE
mr

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥ % ~ fBEL R EMEF)
Retirement scheme contributions BIRETEIMERR

2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
1,920 1,029
18 11

-

2025 ¢
20254 D024%E
Number of Number of
individual individual

A

Nil to HK$ 1,500,000 = %=1,500,0005 7T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017875 22,000,000 7T




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND M. EFMERSHREEREM
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS £ )
(Continued)
(c) Senior management’s emoluments (c) SREEREME
The remuneration paid to the senior management of the FRENFHAEESREEE (&
Group (other than the directors as disclosed in note 11(a) XM EE11 ()Pl 3 B8 B9 E = BR AN)
above) for the year fell within the following emolument band: BN FER T & E -
2025 2024
20255 20244
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 %1,000,00078 7T 3 2
12. DIVIDENDS 12. g2
()  Dividends attributable to the year: (a) ETFEEGERE:

No dividend was proposed by the Company for the year KA Bl A 5 A 202538
ended 31 March RO i o e, £ e SIHILEFEIRERE

e T NPT Y oM
d AT E [T, -
SYR *T’ S B /D y

G e, = e S

HK$'000 '
FET

" Final dividend proposed of S IR IR R AR S0.7273 4,362 |
' HKO 727 cent per ordlnary share

2024
2024%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000

T Fil |

_ Final dividend approved and paid in MBF A B EEHE R
. respect of the previous financial year IRTRYREARR B
- HK0.727 cent (2024: HK1.650 —BRREER.727H1L
cents) per ordinary share (20244 1 1.6507811l1)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;E2025%3H31H LFEE

13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. Ei (B518) &BF
The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share is SEREANEE (BB /BT RE
based on the following information: UTERFE:
2025 2024
20255 20245
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAET TAET
(Loss)/earnings (E518) & ¥
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the KATBHER AENS
Company (&518) /& 10,897
Number of shares Rin& 8
Weighted average number of ordinary shares st EERED (B1E) &F
for the purpose of basic (loss)/earnings B B AR IR T 15 8

per share 600,000

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEfEBrETERZTE .
shares:
— Share options

— R

Weighted average number of ordinary shares izt EEREE (B518) &F
for the purpose of diluted (loss)/eamings B @A N 9 &
per share



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 2% ~ BB R R 1E
Office Other
Leasehold furniture ~ Machinery properties
Leasehold land and and and Motor  leased for
improvement buildings ~ equipment  equipment vehicles own use Total
fELHR  WARER KR Hftr
HERE ¥ #i #i RE BREENE A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ThEn TR TR TR TR TERL TERL

Cost 7
At1 April 2023 20234818 2,402 34,572 5,441 10,498 19,594 809 73,316
Additions hE 921 21,172 324 2,670 - 1,087 32,674
Witten off sy (336) - 87) (529) - (809 (1811)
At 31 March 2024 and R2024E3B31H R

1 April 2024 202454718 2,987 61,744 5,678 12,639 19,694 1,687 104,179
Additions "E - - 0667 1,624 614 - 2,805
Disposal HE - - - - (1,120) - (1,120
Witten off ik - - 27) (1,402 (615) - (2,044)

M 31 March 2025

1202538310

6,318

103820

ZotinE
120234 AR
EREE
Q15

- Accumulated depreciation
AT April 2023

~ Provided for the year

b- Written back on written off

- At 31 March 2024 and
1 April 2024
~ Provided for the year
Written back on disposal
-:-' Written back on written off

1R2024E3B31H K

202454518 1743 45,126
FRiE 1,829 6,651
R ERED (1,120) (1,120
Q=I5 (615) (2,024

R2025%E3A31H 17529 18633 |

| AU31 March 2005

WREFE
1202553A31H 47,314 55,187

Net book value
At 31 March 2025

At 31 March 2024 1R20245378318 49,439 59,058




Notes:

(@)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;E2025%3H31H LFEE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2025, the leasehold land and buildings with net carrying
amount of HK$22,194,000 (2024: HK$23,191,000) are pledged as
securities for the Group’s banking facilities (2024: bank borrowings (note
22) and banking facilities) granted to the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there was addition to other
properties leased for own use of HK$1,587,000. The additions are
non-cash transaction. It represents the lease the Group entered with a
company in which Madam Ng Sing Mui is the director of this company.
As Madam Ng Sing Mui has control over the Company and is the
chairperson and executive director of the Company, this transaction is
therefore a related party transaction. During the year ended 31 March
2025, depreciation charge of right-of-use assets of HK$530,000 (2024:
HK$133,000) and interest on lease liabilities of HK$61,000 (2024:
HK$12,000) were recognised in profit or loss in relation to such lease. As
at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of the respective other properties
leased for own use, lease liabilities and deposits are HK$924,000 (2024:
HK$1,454,000), HK$950,000 (2024: HK$1,457,000) and HK$142,000
(2024: HK$142,000) respectively.

P 5E

14. Y% - BERERE @

JE202543RB31H  REFEA
22,194,000 75 (20244 : 23,191,000
B 2HELHMNEBFERBEAR
SEES AEEIFETRE (20245 ©
SRITER (M5522) MIRTTRAE) ZIER o

B E2024FE3H31HIEEE  HMtMBE A
HEYEAE,587,00087TC ZhE
BHERERF - HiEAEEE—HRE
BLTEAEEN AT INAE - A
=YY ke gk il PN S P Y /N
BRATESR ALZRZABELR
5 o B E2025F3H31HIEFE FH
B E T EE & F530,00078 7T (20244 ¢
133,000/ 75) & & & EF] 61,0005
70 (20244 : 12,00038 7T) M8 2 A B
ZHEREL o FR2025%3831H » &
HMEREEYE HEaGELESSE
B BR (B 5 B! 2924,0007 7T (20244 :
1,454,000 75) ~ 950,000 7t (2024
i il 457-000%75) K142, ooo%m :

20254
HK$’000
F#T

20045 i
HK$'000

THET




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE, 16. i—HEBE QT 2=
AMOUNTS DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE FEUR— R Bt E A~ B 2 FRIB
AND CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION R FEUR A E
RECEIVABLE
a. Interestin an associate a. N—HEEEREZER

2025 2024

20254 20244

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Cost of investment KEAK 21,102 -
Share of post-acquisition profit or loss & U EEE >~

and other comprehensive income BmAxHMEE RS 123 -

21,225 -

Details of the Group’s associate as at 31 March 2025 are as R2025%3831H » AEEBE A F 2

follows: Ty - FHBEWT

Percentage of
Place of ownership interests/ i

incorporation/ Principal voting rights/profit ,
" Name operation activities share
BE AR R

FEMA AL, EE MRS FEED /R EENZEDE

Lask JV Facility Management Services Hong Kong/the PRC  Provision of property
Limited (“Lask JV”) management services

ERBITREEIERBERAE

(T B H:1T) BB/ HE R EBERS 37.5% (fE#2)

37.5% (indirectly)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RrF5ER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;E2025F3831HIEEE

16. A — R E T 2
FEUx — [ B = X B) 2 R IE
B FEUR N SA KB )

16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE,
AMOUNTS DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE
AND CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

RECEIVABLE (continued)
a. Interest in an associate (Continued) a. NM—HKMELABTZER
(48)
Summarised financial information of the Group’s associate KEFBENAMFEEZHBA
and their subsidiaries is as follows: BB ERBENT
Lask JV
FE BT
2025
20254
HK$’000
FHT
As at 31 March R3A31H
Current assets MENEE 144,012
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,893
Current liabilities mEIEE (134,859)
Net assets BEZE 14,046
Less: Non-controlling interests IR E S (1,378)

~ Attributable to owners of Lask JV fE R TR AR 12,668 '

FEEDEBE AT
BEFE
~ Gooduwill [EES

- Group’s share of net assets of the associate

Carrying amount IREE

~ For the period from the date of U EE B HREEE3 831 H LIEERRS
acquisition to 31 March
- Revenue I #
Profit for the period BB P9sEF

- Other comprehensive income Htt2mWla=

EERmABER
B A IR R

Total comprehensive income
. Less: total comprehensive income attributable

to the non-controlling interests of the
associate

FEIE 2 E YR A8 28

" | Attrioutable to owners of Lask JV

ERE TR ARG

Share of results of associate

. Share of other comprehensive income

of associate

PaN(=Y = FNSIES
DILHE AT
Hth 2w W

. Total comprehensive income for the period

attributable to owners of the associate

BaEARmEAE ABGHRN
EHERIABER




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE,
AMOUNTS DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE
AND CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

16. A — R E T 2
FEUx — [ B = X B) 2 R IE
B FEUR N SA KB )

RECEIVABLE (continued)

b. Amounts due from an associate b. B—MBERTZMIA
The balance is unsecured, interest free and repayable on ZEEARIEIE 2B NIREKR
demand. BE-

c. Contingent consideration receivable c. BUKTARE

~ announcement d

On 14 November 2024, the Group completed the acquisition
of 37.5% equity interests in Lask JV (the “Acquisition”). The
total consideration of the Acquisition is RMB18,375,000,
which would be settled by cash. The vendor of the 37.5%
equity interest in Lask JV, namely Lask JV Holdings Co. Ltd
(the “Vendor”) is a company wholly owned by Mr. Johnny
Sze. Mr. Johnny Sze is the spouse of Madam Ng Sing Mui.
As Madam Ng Sing Mui has control over the Company and is
the chairperson and executive director of the Company, the
Acquisition constitutes a connected party and related party
transaction. For further details, please refer to the Company’s
' ated 7 June 2024 and circular dated 31 July

R

12024FE118148 > A AT B 5%
B UL B FE BB TTRYS7 . 5% AR (TR
BBEE) - WBENEREA AR
#18,375,00070 ° A UIREXZ
F o FEEHITI7.5%RENE
BERERBRE2E (EAL))
A—ZREMTEZEBETNAT °
MAEERSRERZTHER -
HEREEL T HARNBHEE T
HHE WRTRNRABEERAT
EEORWESTEEARBESR
BB %  BRE
GBS

nE

)N



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RrF5ER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;E2025F3831HIEEE

16. T—RIlZEAT Z#xE
FEUx — [ B = X B) 2 R IE
B FEUR N SA KB )

16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE,
AMOUNTS DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE
AND CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
RECEIVABLE (continued)

C.

Contingent consideration receivable
(Continued)

If the Actual Net Profit in aggregate for the three years ending
31 December 2026 is less than the Guaranteed Profit in
aggregate for the three years ending 31 December 2026,
the Vendor and Mr. Johnny Sze shall be jointly and severally
obliged to pay to the Group in cash an amount equivalent
to 11 times the average shortfall between the Actual Net
Profit and the Guaranteed Profit, multiplied by 37.5%
(“Compensation”) for the three years ending 31 December
2026, within 14 days after the issuance of Lask JV’s audited
financial statements for the three years ending 31 December
2026 which are expected to be issued on or before 30
June 2027. In the event that Lask JV recorded a loss in
aggregate for the three years ending 31 December 2026,
the Compensation will be calculated based on 11 times the
Guaranteed Profit in aggregate for the three years endlng il
Decerr;ber 2026 multlplled by 87 5% Th,e Com ns

PR AR E

8 £2026F 12831 H IE =@
ERNERAF Gt D REZE2026
F12831HIE=BAFENHRE
mAaE ERREAERE
EEHERRENKEBBEITEHE
2026512831 H LE = @& B K
Bz B R&E M (FA5T 512027
F6H30H Tz 71 & i) ®B14H
A URESERAEERZNEER
B E20265F12831H I =@
ERNE RN ET RS RN
T E RS RLE7.5% (T
TMJ) 3 ﬁ)ﬁuﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ"%ﬁ:@2026
¢12)%31E|Jt_1@¢)?%§-

A5 1B E'Jffﬁiaﬁéjzizozeﬁm

,5ge“5¢,ﬁ¢ﬁeﬁ%@ﬂA;”'




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES

17. EZ FEURFRIE

2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance

B 5 RIS » NBREEEE 89,573 121,016

Trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

EZRERIEL T E#EHE

2025 2024

20254 20244

HK$’°000 HK$'000

FET FET

HKS$ BT 89,357 121,016
Macanese pataca (“MOP”) BP9t (BRFITT) 216 -
89,573 121,016

l%%ﬂﬁl& AJEEI’JTE.EHHEF;EEEIHH

2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000

- Within one month —ER R
| One to three months —E=@EA8
~ More than three months =@RAUL

FET TET

43,866 |
65,446 |

11,704 [

121,016




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;E2025%3H31H LFEE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. Fa{d =@ - N H{thfE
RECEIVABLES e

2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Non-current: JETED
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEYE BEKRREN

plant and equipment BI=IE
Current: e
Other prepayments Hhia(dmia 5,522
Deposits b 644
Other receivables Hih e EIa 1

ey L i

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

SR o 3 s

20254
HK$’000
FHT

Cash and bank balances R KRIRITAEER
Short-term bank deposits with original FEEHADOR=EAN
maturity of less than three months DHRIRTTERR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. B R EME(IRIE

2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FExT
Trade payables (note (a)) B 5 E (fizk@) 17,252 18,680
Accrued staff costs fEst 8 T A 35,745 26,367
Other accrued expenses (note (b)) HhEsTRISZ (MisE(b)) 9,292 6,152

Consideration payable for acquisition of U BE — M E A B ERE
an associate 4,009 -
Other payables HihfEImIa 607 1,680
Deposits % 342 562
49,995 34,761

Notes: F=E -

(@  Trade payables are denominated in the following currencies: () HEZERHIEBUTSIEEE:

2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

BT
JRPI7T (MRPITT)

HK$°000
FTET

Within one month —@BAR
~ One to three months —Z=@A2
| More than three months @AM E




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;E2025%3H31H LFEE

21. LEASE LIABILITIES 21. fHE&F
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TRIRAEBRFERZHEASGBHK
the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the year: TEAEEBER

2025 2024

20255 20244
Present Present
Future value of Future value of
lease future lease lease future lease
payments payments payments payments
KRR Rk
Kk  HEMR KK HEMAR
HE T ENEN  HHEMR RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TFETT FET FET

Not later than one year TERR—F 568 507
Later than one year and —FBREFERME

not later than two years 568 533
Later than two years and MEBERNERESE

not later than five years 426 417

1,562
(105)

AR B

Less: future interest expenses

Present value of lease liabilities HEaERE

1,457 1,457

Analysis for reporting purpose as: Ft2HmRE DTS !
Current liabilities piEzI=KE
- Non-current liabilities JEREAEE




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

22. BANK BORROWINGS 22, $RITfER
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHT FET
Bank loans IRITEMR - 938
All of the Group’s bank loans as at 31 March 2024 contained a AEE 202453831 BN BIRITEHE
repayable on demand clause and therefore the entire bank loan NHBEREREEZEH ALEFAN
balances for the year has been classified as current liabilities. 2R TERGGREDBEARBAEE
Notes: FEE -
@) All bank borrowings are denominated in HK$. As at 31 March 2024, the (i) Fft & R 17 & R A8 7T 51 {E © $R20244E3
bank borrowings carried floating interest rates at 3.03% per annum. B318 » RITERFAMN B EAS
F3.03E °
(i) As at 31 March 2024, the bank borrowings were secured by the (i)  FN2024FE3H31H  RITBHRHALER
leasehold land and buildings held by the Group with net carrying amount Fr 5 BR 0% E 923,191,000 Tt 2 A &
of approximately HK$23,191,000. + AR F AR o
23. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE 23. RIS & BE

> Sz e, |




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TSR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

23. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE

PAYMENTS (Continued)

The LSP benefit is determined with reference to the employee’s
last full month’s salary (capped at HK$22,500) and number of
years of service. An employee may also elect to use his average
wages in the 12 months immediately preceding the termination of
employment contract for the calculation. The LSP benefit is capped
at HK$390,000 for each eligible employee. The accrued benefits
derived from the Group’s mandatory contributions under the MPF
scheme in respect of that employee can be used to offset the LSP
benefit. Also, the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
permit the Group to offset long service payment payable against
the accrued benefits attributable to the Group’s contributions to the
ORSO Scheme.

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Cap.
485, the Group, as an employer, is required to make mandatory
MPF contribution at 5% of the employee’s monthly salary (capped
at HK$1,500). The Group makes the contribution to a trustee. MPF
scheme has attributes of a defined contribution plan.

The Group contributes 5% on the employee’s monthly salary to the
ORSO Scheme. The assets of which are held separately from those
of the Group in trustee-administered funds independently.

In June 2022, Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”) was enacted. The Amendment
Ordinance abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived
from employers’” mandatory MPF contributions to offset LSP (the
“Abolition”). Subsequently, the HKSAR Government announced
that the Abolition will take effect on Transition Date.

The following key changes will take effect since the Transition Date:

- Accrued benefits derived from employers’ mandatory MPF
contributions cannot be used to offset the LSP in respect of
the employment period after the Transition Date.

= The pre-transition LSP is calculated using the last month’s
salary immediately preceding the Transition Date, instead of
using the last month’s salary of employment termination date.

- Employers cannot use the “carved-out benefits” from the
vested benefits of ORS contributions to offset employees'
SPASE;

23. REAARTE & & @)

EHERBcERHIE2EZREERR
M52 B 5 (LR %22,500% 7T) M BR
BEHBREI - RBEMTHEEFERER
ERESGVOKRLEM2ZEBNTEHIE
ETHH BLEEKEENRBER
e R A390,000/8 7T © A~EH
RiEaETTEMZEEFH R
HRMEENRARZITRAREIE
HARR TS &M 2 o b oh o Bt 2R IR 5t I
BARTFAEBUECSHERRS S
HAAEEABERAFEEHANR

RN

R o

RIEF4852 14 N &= 5T B R A -
FEBFRRE BRREEAFHSGS
(EMR71,5008 ) fEdH @G BaEE
HR-EAEERRTEAFHER B
REEAEREHNGAINBIE -

REE RS B 3 AI5% M B R B K5t
BMEEMR - 2 EERLEH
NEEDH BXRFEABEZEESH
MHFA °

1520225468 > (20224 f& /& K 3B K 5t
BIER (HEH 2 5F) (BED) &A1) (MERT
RBL) B - BT IRPIBE IR ER R E
Bt REEHRTEENRERD
FRIGSHRAEE PR TE (TBERRY) © BBTR -
BARABANTHRERNEMERERE
H B E o

TIEZREHKBEEH HREBEXR

— RBENRFIMRBEHRMELE
By RSt A A B E R E T
BERBENRAKRESE -

- BHENERARBEHERERE
BRI HRR —ERNFEET
stE - MIFERFEARIEBANRRE
—BRMNHE o

— BERIEAREELE K E
(R BEEA 35 00 TR 35 554
REMBHE EHRES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

23. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE 23. REIRBEEE @
PAYMENTS (Continued)
At the time when the HKSAR Government announced the effective EEFRITHE BN TS MBS %
date of the Abolition, it indicated that it would launch a scheme to AR H RS » RnAGHELE —IR5 8 -
subsidise a portion of the post-transition portion of LSP payable U RERENEGFRBZNNE S
by employers. Subsequently in November 2024, the Finance ERE - HEB > I Z8UWHBEEEN
Committee of the Legislative Council approved the creation of a 2024F M BHERII—BARE  UE
commitment for implementing the subsidy scheme for the Abolition MECE#E S AT e (RERE <
(“LSP Subsidy”). Based on the Group’s accounting policy on the L)) cREBEAEERREHERE S
LSP Subsidy, the subsidy is regarded as government grants for NG K BRBBESS £
accounting purpose. No government grants are recognised during AR 75 BT #/ Bl o &L 2025538 31
the year ended 31 March 2025. HIEFE > 0 F 2 E A BT 45 8 ©
An actuarial valuation of long service payments was carried out EHRBZcNBEELENBEBLIEX
at 31 March 2025 by independent professional qualified valuer, EERGEMSEFEERAE N
Valtech Valuation Advisory Limited, using the projected unit credit 202553 A31 B HTEMB M EAAE
method. e
Movements in the liability recognised in the consolidated statement BEMBRARTREIDZNEEEHN
of financial position are as follows: 25

2025 2024

20255 2024%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

At beginning of the year REH] 13,477
- Benefit paid from the plan RESENEN DR (1,677)
;' Remeasurements recognised in other REMGRE IR P RER Y
~ comprehensive income: EHFE
. Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from MHBREHEENEE
- changes in financial assumptions (Wezm) /K518 (2,520)

RIEFE T FEINES
Current service cost BNEARR 75 Al A
Interest cost A E AR

| Atend of the year




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;E2025%3H31H LFEE

23. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE 23. REARBEEE @
PAYMENTS (Continued)
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the RIREHARFEANEEBFERROT

reporting period are as follows:

2025 2024
20254 2024£
Discount rate ARIRE 3.1% -3.3% p.a. 3.5% —3.6% p.a.
FE3.1%E3.3% BEIL5%E3.6%
Expected rate of future salary increase  Z< 2 i & T ERIZ 1S 1.0% p.a. 3.6% p.a.
FF1.0% BF3.6%

The below analysis shows how the long service payment U BREEBERSEDN

obligations would have increased/(decreased) as a result of change 28 EARBEZNEEHEAOMA

in the principal actuarial assumptions as follow: m/ R -
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) \
in long inlong =

service service
Increase payment Decrease payment
in rate obligations in rate obligations fsae
REFRH RERBE
ZEF IHEE
FlEigm  sgm G Fl=r  Em/ G '
HK$'000 HK$'000

THAT THT

As at 31 March 2025 12025%3831H
Discount rate BEIRX

RRFEER

Future salary increase

~ As at 31 March 2024 122024538318
- Discount rate BEIRX 0.5% (167) 0.5% 171

Future salary increase

RRFEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

24. DEFERRED TAX 24, RIETRTE
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities after RiEEH B R TP 2T HIRLERIE
offsetting is presented in the consolidated statement of financial BEMEIERIBEEIRHEERI 2T
position as follows: T @

2025 2024
20254 20244

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHTT FET

Deferred tax assets FEEMIEE E = 133
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIBEE (1,759) (1,415)
(1,759) (1,282)

At beginning of the year REH (1,282) (1,932)
(Charged)/credited for the year (note 10) FW G0 A (iEE10) (477) 650
At end of the year RER (1,759) (1,282)

.‘_' N deté_r_@q_ tax assets

Ep o BEREEEREENSHT
‘,-.—F_:-: " . A 5 " 1 o 'y A

Accelerated

Retirement tax

benefits depreciation

BAEF IRRIAIRE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

~ Asat 1 April 2023 7202354810
Credited for the year (note 10) FEREtA (MF:E10)

~ Asat 31 March 2024 and 22024438318 &
. at 1 April 2024 R2024%F481H
Charged for the year (note 10) FERHE (MsE10)

| As at 31 March 2025 #2025%3H31H
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;E2025%3H31H LFEE

24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

As at 31 March 2025, deductible temporary differences for
retirement benefits of HK$2,239,000 (2024: HK$3,917,000) has
been recognised as deferred tax assets. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$7,855,000 (2024
HK$10,547,000) as it is not considered probable that there will be
future taxable profits available.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$33,358,000 (2024: HK$17,619,000) available to
offset against future profits and may be carried forward indefinitely.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for such losses
at the reporting date as it is not probable that there will be future
taxable profits available for the relevant entities.

25. SHARE CAPITAL

24, IRIEFIE @)

75202538311 » BKRBEF B A 0
35T B 2= 282,239,000 7T (20244
3,917,000 7t) EMRDAELERIBE
EoRRBABRRKAFKABEELEREERER
= A o BB i BL 8% 7,855,000 T
(20244 : 10,547,000 7T) HE 583k iE
RIBEE

72025438310 AEE A KREFA
7 T8 55 18 4933,358,0007 7T (20244F
17,619,000 7t) B A3 BX & /0 ok 26 i
Mo el EPREAAE B o RN MEHRE B 8
KRR KBIEEEEERRER - AR
H]RE BB R T B BB IR R SRR IE AR
IBEE o

25, g7

Number of Amount
shares HK$’000
Ri7 & E FET

SRREE0.0O1E TN
AT

7R2023F481H ~
2024838318 ~
20244818 K&

2025%3831H 10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid: EZETREE
At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024, 1 April 2024  722023F481H ~
and 31 March 2025 202438318 ~
2024F4B1H &
2025%3831H

600,000,000




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

26. RESERVES 26. #fE

Group £

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves for the years AEBE E20255F K2024F3H31H 1k

ended 31 March 2025 and 2024 are presented in the consolidated FEZHEBHFBEINNE4EZ

statement of changes in equity on page 74. The natures and RERDEERAN - REMEZEE

purposes of reserves within equity are as follows: MENWTF

(@) Share premium account of the Company represents the () ARERHHEREZETEER
excess of the proceeds (net of any incremented costs) from Fr U BR 2 P18 7R 18 (F0 BR £E A
issuance of ordinary shares received over the nominal value M) BHARE B ETRG
of the Company’s shares issued. HENZD °

()  The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the by AEBEHREINHEBREMEE
group reorganisation and represented the difference between o HIEEBEEHABE N 2REHE
the consideration under the group reorganisation and the ERMMBRENBABSRAEEZ
nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries then ERH o
acquired.

(¢)  The share option reserve represents the cumulative expenses () EBREREEREBHRRBEDGE

~ recognised on the granting of share options to the eligible H2EEREEREREIRZR

participants over the vesting period. 1. R o

osé_e’g arising

ot



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025%3H31H LFEE

26. RESERVES (continued) 26. 1%1% (48)
Company Vi /N
Retained
Share profits/
Share Merger option  (Accumulated
premium reserve reserve loss) Total
REE
i EE afiE  BRERE (EHER fagt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAR TER TER TAR TAR

At 1 April 2023 14202354510 48,177 (10) 26 10,812 59,005
Final dlividend approved and paid BHEREANKARE - - - (9,900) (9,900)
Proft for the year and total FNENRFAZENRE
comprehensive income for the year 4228 - - - 5,121 5,121
At 31 March 2024 and 1202438316 R s
1 April 2024 2024F481H 48177 (10) 26 6,033 54,206 ;

- ‘ Final dividend approved and paid BHERENNRERE (4,362) (4,362)
~ Loss for the year and total ERER K
comprehensive income for the year ERNZENGRE (1,993) (1,993

At 31 March 2025 R2026E3R31H 48,177 (322) 47,871
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 27. FBIGHEETE @)
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) Eg’\ NS R EEIRE
&l @

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees of any member of the Group and any executive
directors of the Company.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
share option offered under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be equal to the offer price of HK$0.42 per share.

The share options granted to each grantee under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to exercise the share
options granted during the option period under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme in the following manners:

:  (a ‘) 50% of the share‘ optlons granted to grantee under the

~ Pre- PO SF]are Op’aon Scheme aT any tlme on ,o‘h after .

‘-  the first. date on WhICh *’ueahngé in ’ghe sh reé of tHe.
—;Ccimqany commenced on the?SI-OCj; Ex
~ “Listi ") to the date mﬁedlag‘,e}y before ,;‘.hé tentth

ch ng‘é' (the 2 4

GERSREEQEAEBRIMK
BRABZAEFZREFRERE LU
RERNBZEMRITES -

AR ANFIR MR R R AT A R
REMERBZMEBTERN

B

MERAREEBRESE R
TREZEAREBREZRD
RBERAZEBER42E8T
R

REBEBE X AREERERESS
MEAFEARGZ BRESRT
REEF TS AR BEREDR
BIREE R AR %S5 B RES
FITERBEZERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3831HILFEE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 27. B E @
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) () BXR HEETERE
=t & (@)

Share options granted prior to the expiration of the Pre-IPO KEXR REErERESEE
Share Option Scheme but not yet exercised at that time shall W EITE 1B B B i R T A B AR
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the B EEENMIBEE R M
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. EFBRESE R FITRE o
The following tables disclose details of movements of share TREEREERX AHEETE
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme: REHEST B 2~ RE IR e BN o 15
Year ended 31 March 2025 H E2025F3831HILLFE

Number of share options

fEREHRE

Share Granted Exercised Lapsed At

option during during during 31 March
type the year the year the year 2025
fEhg e 1220255
=] FRARE ER1TE FARXN  3H31H

~ Director BF = e
- Ang Ming Wah  HBRZE Tranche 1 32,000 = - - 32,000
FE—it
Tranche 2 32,000 - - - 32,000
|

| Employees
: Inaggregate &% Tranche 1 40,000 - - - 40,000
F—it

Tranche 2
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 27. BRREE @
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) E’r g’J\ rHAEEFBRE
58 @
Year ended 31 March 2024 # EF2024F3831HLLEFE

Number of share options

BB EHE
Share At Granted  Exercised Lapsed At
option 1 April during during during 31 March
type 2023 the year the year the year 2024
FEReHE 1120234 202445

SRt 4H1H FARE FR1T FAKRM  3H31H

Director =£F
Ang Ming Wah  JHBRZE Tranche 1 32,000 - - - 32,000
F—it
Tranche 2 32,000 - - - 32,000
F 4
Employees E&
Z - 40,000

~ Inaggregate A3 Tranche 1 40,000 = ¥

) it | E2 2R
:?ﬁ.‘-f_ra7 RV =y
Share option type Date of grant Exercisable period

ELldr ki R BE 1T1EHAR

Tranche 1 23 February 2017 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42
| E 2017 2823H 2017438160 £2027438 15H 0.4287T |

| Tranche 2 23 February 2017 16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42 = =
o ECH 20174253230 2018438 168 £202743415H 0.42787T |
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii) Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was adopted
by the then sole shareholder (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to eligible participants of the Group and to promote
the success of the business of the Group.

The eligible participants include any employee (full-time
or part-time), director, consultant, adviser, substantial
shareholder, distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer,
business partner or service provider of the Group. The basis
of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any option
shall be determined by the Company’s board of director
(the “Board”) (or as the case may be, the independent non-
executive directors) from time to time on the basis of his
contribution or potential contribution to the development and
growth of the Group.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
a price solely determined by the Board and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the option, which must be a business day; (i) the average of
the closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (i) the nominal value of a share of the Company
on the date of grant of the option.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to
the Company. on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an
option is HK$1.

27. BIRESE @

(ii) FBAztESTE

FR2017F2H21H » & KM — g
RIRM—IBEE GRSt B (THE AR A
stEl) o

BRESTESERSI KIRERE
FHABE -RAEAEEGERS A
ERUEBINEBURE S EEER
RGAIHES -

CERZ2UEEREAEETEM
BE (2HIER EF#EH
AERTERR - DHEBE
AEm -fEF KB -FH-
BEBHARBUHER - s F
Exg ((E5%) @BIER
TESF RBERME) I FER
BENSEEHNAEEERNIE
REFEH AT BEFHBY B RURTE
ERBRESHEZENERS -

REBERESSRHNEMNSE
BRENRDIBEHESTE R
RECTENSEE  BFEH
KRRIRBE (F2BAROK
BRERHAHA WAREXH)
PREH R P B SR BRFTB U THIE ;
(= RBE RO EZBRER D
B hEEXEEBASH
WERPTIRAYF B ;5 Reliii)
RABRMRERER L BN
HE e

RHBRENZNRNRIFL AR
SHNEH (BEER ECHRE
Mo BREABAAREMNEN
Rpl R B BRIER A QF
187T°
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

b

(ii) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company as from the
adoption date (excluding, for this purpose, shares issuable
upon exercise of options which have been granted but have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company)
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares in issue
as at the Listing Date. Therefore, it is expected that the
Company may grant options in respect of up to 60,000,000
shares (or such numbers of Shares as shall result from a
sub-division or a consolidation of such 60,000,000 shares
from time to time) to the participants under the Share Option
Scheme.

The 10% limit as mentioned above may be refreshed at any
time by approval of the shareholders in general meeting
provided that the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
as at the date of approval of the refreshed limit. Options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (including
those outstanding, cancelled or lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company) will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the refreshed 10% limit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Group at any time
shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of the Company
from time to time. No share options shall be granted under
any schemes of the Company (including the Share Option
Scheme) if this will result in the 30% limit being exceeded.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
XIBEREBARAE <

27. BIRESE @

(i) FERRHEETE @

B4 HHRERB R ERETE
P& NSRS CIR= Sl ot
FTRENEEBREETEMmA
BITHRMOEE LR Riktms
FEERBRHERIEERES
AN BEREAMERRETE
BRBERMNEREETHEMmA
FTETHNRMD) » &aHFEBEBE
HRETHBHEZBEZTRHEW
10% ° AUt » FBEA A 2 B A 1R #&
BREFEES2EEREE T MR
%60,000,0008& B 17 (30 A B iF
40 o, & 1 5260,000,0008% P& 17 T
EEXNRDEE) HERE -

£ SRR B9109% R 58 BT BB B 48 B
RERRAGLHEREN B
HREERES S REQTEM
Hthis R Es 8 R HN 2 MEK
REEITEM P BERTTRIRMDABEL
TREBEMELCEMBEEH
BETRMHI0% st ELEERH
10%R 28 B > o Bl 1R 15 B8 AR 1 5t
B R A R EMER H A B8 A #E 51 &)
RHupEkE (BEREBRE
sTE| AR EMEAE At BB R 5t
BEIWERERTE - EFEHIE
KUBERE) TEAEERN

BEGFELABER  AREER
EstB RAEEBEAAMBRRE
STEIREMERTTENZEER
RETEMAEETHRND R
E R RIS ERE QBB
BETRMAIB0% MR FEA R
EMEM T8 (BERERESE) &
HEERER & BE L 30%H IR
g ISR EBERE -
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares issued and which fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group (including both exercised and outstanding options) to
each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of offer
to grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of offer to grant. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

In addition, any grant of an option to a Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company (or
any of their respective close associates) must be approved
by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the option). Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director (or
any of their respective close associates) will result in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares in issue; and having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of share
options will be subject to the approval of shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.

No share option under the Share Option Scheme has been
granted since its adoption.

27. BIRESE @

(i) FERRHEETE @

BEENORKBEHLEEM2ER
HEA > AREERESE RE
SEEMEMBERES S B &K
RARUNBRE (BEETHE
RERTENERE EBTEM
BOTRATHETHRMDBHE T
FEEXAAFDRBNRLAHRE
EITRADBI1% © I ERIMR LB
Bz % LRI ERELALRR
RIREAE EH#E -

s BESZ - ARBEFEBTH
AERETERE (AFEZEW
FEEBZEBREAN) BRHEAER
BoHELBIYIERNTES (F
BRESABREAR ANEAE
VIEHATESR) MME-HMEEE
BREXBIFERTES (THE
ZENEABRRHEAN) BHE
AEREMEREEERH A
(BFE%B) LEA12E 8 #/E
Ao Bt A £ RAR 5 B8 R E 51 )
RAENBEREMBERESEE
EREMEESNEZIEBRE (8
EETE B RERTEN
FERG W) T Em 1T Mg 5 8
THRMES  EHEBREBET
RIPEI01% ; RIBERHSD RS
REHBRHEENEEBR
5,000,000/ 7T > ZE—FIXHE
REBRANEIREERREAS
EHbE o

BB St S ER LAZR » B ERE
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28. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 28. EERAEF

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme which is registered under the ORSO Scheme for certain
employees, the assets of which are held separately from those of
the Group in trustee-administered funds independently. The Group
contributes 5% on the employee’s monthly salary to the ORSO
Scheme.

The Group also operates a MPF scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed in Hong Kong. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF scheme, the employers and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. The subsidiary is
required to contribute certain percentage of their payroll costs to
~ the central pension scheme.

£ o

~ The retirement scheme cos jébog_ri_iSéEf in profit or loss represents

~ contributions paid or payable to the retirement bene

~ the Group at rates specified in the rule of the respec

o7 B N P et T
= R e

chemeby

FEEABETREXETREREERK
stEIEMZ ERHBRKEF TS
ZtB 2 EERAEBNEEDR
HREAEEREZEEBUFR &
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R SEETEREBNEEHETARR
T8 - BB ESHBILRFEA
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HARILENEE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025%3H31H LFEE

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. EAKIE
2025 2024
20255 2024£
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHB7T
Contracted but not provided for: EEJHBRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BEEY% « KB KRR 170 98
30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. FEF R 7
()  Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial () FEEMBRRAMMBOPKE
statements, the Group had no other significant transaction BN > BIE20255 2024537
with related parties for the years ended 31 March 2025 and SIHLEFE AEEHEAMSE
2024. AEEABEFRS °
(i)  The remunerations of key management personnel, who (i) FR>ETEZEBA8 BERH
are the directors of the Company during the year, were as BE) ZHFMUT -
follows:

2025 2024

20254 20244

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

Short-term employee benefits EHREEEF 10,906 10,544
Retirement scheme contributions BIRET BT 377 370




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

31. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued) N.BFEE @

For capital management purpose, the director of the Company MEAEEENMES  ARBAEEU
monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio. Total debt EEAEGREEARERUERER -

is calculated as lease liabilities and bank borrowings. Total equity REFITEATEEEENRITER
represents the amount presented on the consolidated statement of BEGSAEAMBIRREERMEINNE

financial position. A o

2025 2024

20255 20244

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FAET FET

Lease liabilities HEaR 950 1,457

Bank borrowings RITER - 938

Total debt 4BETRS 950 2,395

Total equity ERER 198,495 211,300

b ~ Gearing ratio BEARBELE 0.005 times 0.01 times

")

2 MBEAREE

Sie]
it a;gd?a




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z2025%3831HIEFE
32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continved)  32. B4 75 JA [ & 12 ()

(a) Summary of financial assets and liabilities (a) HEREATHWEMEE
by category RaEBE

2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Financial assets EREE
Fair value through profit or loss: BATEF AERIR
Contingent consideration receivable FERZHARE -
Amortised cost: B AT AR
Trade receivables B ERRIE 121,016
Deposits and other receivables BEREMERRIE 645
Amounts due from an associate fEU — RSB & A B 2 A -
Cash and cash equivalents HERESZEY 93,559

215220

" Financial liabilities TRaE
- Amortised cost: BB ATER ¢

Trade payables B 5 LA
Accruals, deposits and other payables* EstER - mEM

Hh e FhE
Bank borrowings RITHER

Lease liabilities HEAaE




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFS R R sE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{Z2025F3H31HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continueqy 32. BAFERAIE S 1B @)

(b) Credit risk (b) EE R

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributed to its trade and AEENEERMFIERHNE
other receivables and cash and bank balances. Management 85 &Eﬁﬂ}% H&?XIE MK IRE R
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit IRITHEBRMMER -BEEBER
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis and follow-up action —EFERK ZEEEREE
is taken to recover overdue debts. FECEREERE T BIRIEET

AWl R EFS o
For trade receivables, the Group reassesses the lifetime MEBSEWBRIEMS  AEER
expected credit losses at the end of the reporting period REPXREFTE2BEREE
to ensure the adequate impairment losses are made for B8 IR B YR L sk &
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of default AV 49T BEE O R R B8 E 1 0
occurring since initial recognition. TEL B R E B EME o
The Group has concentration of credit risk with two #2025E3H31H  KEBES
customers with trade receivables of HK$56,074,000 (2024: SR EERE MBEEENES
two customers of HK$72,156,000) as at 31 March 2025. The FEUN TR IE 256,074,000 7T (2024
Group measure the expected credit losses on individual basis F Mm% EFAT2,156,0008 7T) °©
to these two customers. For other customers, the Group AEEREBEEHRZMAER
measure the expected credit losses on collective basis. STETEHEERE MEMER
As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the expected loss rates EOAEERREREENER
applied in the provision matrix are determined with reference HA{E B 548 © 7R20254 20244
to the debtors’ shared credit risk characteristics, including SESIH  EREAEEEENE
background of the customers and their historical payment B EENLK2EGHEANLEE
behaviour, historical credit loss on the trade receivables and FEERRBRE @EEEEEN
information pertaining to the economic environment in which HBFMRITH B2RIHRIE
the debtors operate. FAFEEEBENRESAMEZ

RBEIRIEZ BRI MERE ©
The following table provided information about the Group’s TRIEHEEGEANBSHRSTEHR
exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables as at FIAREEERR N E S ERIE
the end of the reporting period: ZTEHEERIEZER .

Average
expected Gross
¥ credit carrying Loss
HERSRT ' As at 31 March 2025 loss rate amount allowance
el .~ 1#2025%3H31H EEEEE IRMEAEE BSi81E
) 25 D HK$’000 HK$'000 ===l
3 — FHAT FHT ZoSd b
~ Notyetpast due BES R 0.11% 40,412 45 Qs
~ Less than one month past due EHEA DR —E B 0.12% 42,520 51 [rel
One to three months past due mE—ZE=EA 0.33% 4,842 16 oo

More than three months past due

WEA={EA MU £ 18.89% 2,356 aa5 [

2 gk :
W J»Wl §C§N OLﬁmzas HONG
142" mrn%g- g%ﬁmﬁjr

n




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025%3H31H LFEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continues) ~ 32. B4 75 & b B IE @)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EEREE @
Average
expected Gross
credit carrying Loss
As at 31 March 2024 loss rate amount allowance
THTEH
112024438 31H EEBEX IREARE EiaEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Not yet past due 18 2 38 HA 0.26% 44,125 113
Less than one month past due wHER D —@E 8 0.45% 63,643 289
One to three months past due BH—E==@EAR 1.26% 6,652 84
More than three months past due BEA=(EA L & 6.61% 7,583 501

122,003 987




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continues) 32. BAFEREE IR @)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EE R @
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade BERKARIBEZ HIEREHRED
receivables is as follows: T
HK$'000
FET
Balance at 1 April 2023 1R2023F481H 2 4555 227
Provision for impairment loss during the year, net  FE B EE BRI » F%E 760
Balance at 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 12024FE3831H K
2024F AR 1H Z 48R 087
Reversal of impairment loss during the year, net FRFEEERERRD > $58 (430)
Balance at 31 March 2025 202553331 H 2 458k 557
(c) Liquidity risk . (c) "BEERAMR

o, L'Lqu ity risk ﬁelates to the rlsk that the Group will not be able < s ﬁ@fléﬁﬁ'ﬂ % ,\Zkﬁ ] Hé.’r,.“ E_;‘W‘E _



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 32. BAFE RS B IR ()

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

(c) mEEE R @)

The following tables show the remaining contractual TRAEBLAEESHEBERRS

maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s ARG TENRHBER HE

financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows RAMBRERE (BERAE

(including interest payments computed using contractual AR ED (A ZHFIE) BRER

rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting SHBNRTHNEFENFER

date) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay. B) MAEEAEBZTHNRSE
HHER ©

Total Within More than

contractual one year one year

Carrying undiscounted or on but within

amount amount demand two years
2:14

RAEH R—%RA MEML

RRE(E FRIBE HEER EREFA
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FTET TER TR FTET

At 31 March 2025

Trade payables

Accruals, deposits and
other payables*

~ Lease liabilities

142025538318

B2 RMTIE 17,252 17,252 17,252 —
FEETER  Hek !
HAnER I 9,332 9,332 9,332 - n

HE&RE




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continues) ~ 32. B4 75 & b B IE @)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEEE R @)
Total Within More than More than
contractual one year one year two years
Carrying  undiscounted oron but within but within
amount amount demand two years five years
BET4

R R—%R —EN0E MELLE

REE FIRMBE FREX EBRWER  EBRIER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR TER TER

At 31 March 2024 1202438310
Trade payables BRENTE 18,680 18,680 18,680 - -
Accruals, deposits and MEHER  BeERk

other payables* HithERFE 4,222 4,222 4,222 - -
Lease liabilities HESE 1,457 1,562 568 568 426
Bank borrowings RITER 938 938 938 - -

Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within
amount amount one year
BT
RELIR
REE FIEMEER —FR |
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHBT

At 31 March 2024 £202443831H




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RrF5ER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from variable rate bank
balances. Exposure to interest rate risk exists on those
balances subject to floating interest rate when there are
unexpected adverse interest rate movements. The Group’s
policy is to manage its interest rate risk, working within
an agreed framework, to ensure that there are no undue
exposures to significant interest rate movements and rates
are approximately fixed when necessary.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for the variables rate bank
balances and bank borrowings at the end of the year. The
analysis is prepared assuming amounts of these financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the year were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points increase

or decrease in the prevailing rates of relevant banks is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management

the EuRARTRES

32. WA EIE @
(d) =R E

TEBBF KA R K BT
K5t BHIRITAERR o M HIFEE
BANGEHN RESEHE > AF R
REBEFERRERRITIBFER
B - AEBHBRE ERH
EERNEEENEE R > LUE
REFEEAMNXEHFHA AT
BRRER TEEFEERETH
HIFE o

WRAE S

TRBBED IR ERNT
507 32 SR 1T 65 8 T SRAT 1 2RO T
EEBEE  ZH N BBRIE
KR EENRESRTEY &
EHRENMAEETSY B
TEEEABNBLRAEAR
B P B R SR 1T BT I B) 15T

R FMSOEER EEBEHN

B RENEE

-




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HILFEE
32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 32. MFE A EIR @)
(e) R ERA @

(e) Fair value risk (Continued)

Financial assets measured at fair value

Group’s valuation processes

The Group’s finance department performs the valuations
of financial assets required for financial reporting purposes.
As at 31 March 2025, the Group has engaged independent
professionally qualified valuer to assist the Group in
determining the fair value of financial instruments in level
3 for financial reporting purposes. The responsibility for
determining the fair value rests with the Group. At each
financial reporting date, the finance department reviews all
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments
used to measure the fair values of financial instruments in
level 3.

The following table presents financial assets measured at
fair value at the reporting date in accordance with fair value
hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial assets into three
levels based on the relative reliability of significant inputs used
in measurlng the fair value of these flnanC|a| assets. The fair
. value h|erarchy_has theiollowmg Ievels

I‘jerd)rr'r.actlve" 4
_a§s sand habﬂlhqs ,;,f e

BRAFEABZEHMEE
L Z 15 ERE
FEEMBHBYHFREENE
KRB TRMEEETHE - 122025
F3R31H  A&EBEEZEE I
EXAERGEMGHEEERD
MERSENEES=EBRER
TENAFE BEATFENS
FEREEE KERSHR
MBS ERBRFES=ZE®R
EMITEAATENMBEERRH
BZaABBENMGERE -

TREVIRBLAFEBRRES
BREATEFENEMEEZE
o btBHRREAERTEME
EZATEMEANEZSAR
BHENATRE SEmEED

Ao @ o/&ﬂﬂﬁ@f.‘&ﬁ?ﬁm it



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 32. BAFE RS B IR ()

(e) Fair value risk (Continued) (e) RXFERER @
Financial assets measured at fair value BATENAEZEMEE
(Continued) (%)
Group'’s valuation processes (Continued)) KEE[E 2 15 B A2 ()
The financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated REEHBRAERRNZELATFES
statement of financial position are grouped into the fair value EZUBEEDEDAUTAF
hierarchy as follows: BERE& :

As at 31 March 2025
11202553H31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—EBR FIEBHR F=BH& “ast

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$’000
TR TET TR FTHET

Assets BE
Financial assets at FVPL BAFEA
EEZERMEE

— KRR RE

- Contingent consideration
receivable

- Total fair value ATFEIELE

8 e Py :



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continues) ~ 32. B4 75 & b B IE @)

(e) Fair value risk (Continued) (e) XEERRE @

Financial assets measured at fair value BATENAEZEHMEE

(Continued) (48)

Group’s valuation processes (Continued) KEFZ (5 1E 77 (B)

(@) Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair (a) HERMME=EBHLFE
value measurements (Continued) STEFTRM Z @ A S (B)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of BISEEENTREES=
financial assets on recurring basis are as follows: BATEFEZHERWT !

Contingent
consideration
receivable
FEUR SR A E
HK$’'000
FET

As at acquisition date and 31 March 2025 AUk RS B BA R 202538 31H 228

w




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025%3H31H LFEE

33. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33. 48 IR&NEaRME
OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: MEEHMEENEEHEE !
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings
HEaE RITEM
(note 21) (note 22)
(M5E21) (MizE22)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FH7T
At 1 April 2023 1#20235F481H 86 2,506
Changes from financing cash flows: RERSREEE .
Repayment of bank borrowings BIERITER - (1,568)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 1 & & &< 2 12X (216) -
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilites A& &&F B &5 4730 (19) -
Total changes from financing cash flows SEIRS TS EEEEE (229) (1,568)

Other change: Hihgs) .
New lease mHE
. Interest expenses FMERE
 Interest paid under operating cash flows REFEREBETHENFE

At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 220245383 1H K
2024%F481H

Changes from financing cash flows: BRSS!
~ Repayment of bank borrowings EBEIETEXR
~ Payment of principal portion of lease liabilites 0 & & &4 & & 73 9%
~ Payment of interest portion of lease liabilites 78S & & F) £ 29 12X

Total changes from financing cash flows MERSRESTNERE

~ Other change: Hhgs)
Interest expenses A ERX
Interest paid under operating cash flows KEREREETHEMFE

~ At31 March 2025 #2025 38310




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY

34. AT IAFER AR

2025 2024

20254 20244

Notes HK$’°000 HK$' 000
B 5 FHET FET

Non-current asset EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries DL NI 35 -
Current assets MBIEE
Prepayments A TIE 131
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN EYNGIE 56,119
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 4,104
60,354
Current liability mENRME
Accruals, deposits and other payables FfETE B - @S K&

H M -IB

MBEEFERFEE

~ Net current assets and net assets

EQUITY W

Share capital
Reserves

&

25

6,000
54,226

Total equity



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025%3H31H LFEE

35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 35. KB AT 2=
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: WBABEBUWT :

Place of Equity interest owned
incorporation/ Issued ordinary by the Company

Name of subsidiary operation share capital At 31 March Principal activities
ML BRITEBER XATNN3A3IH

YN R fig s A BRI TEEER

2025 2024

20254 20244
%
%

Directly held:

BiEFE -

Winson Group Hong Kong BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100  Investment holding
Limited

KIEEEEBERAT RERLES/ 17T REEK

Y

- Perma Growth Investment BVI/Hong Kong Investment holding
Limited
- KBEERRAT RERLES/ BEER
&%

~ Winson Global Asset Holdings  BVI/Hong Kong Investment holding
- Limited
| KIBEBIKE E HEEUHE/ REER

BRAF BB




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R F5ER AR MIsE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025F3H31HIEEE

35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

35. RMIB AT 2w @)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary
Name of subsidiary operation share capital
31 AT eRITLER
B AR & Sk [N
Indirectly held:
BIEHE -
Winson Cleaning Service Hong Kong HK$6,000,000
Company Limited

. XIBEZREERAT

o Winson Professional Pest
- Control Company Limited

| BEEERSERAT

~ Wealthy Strong Investment
- Limited
ERKERRAT

- Winson Inno Investment
Limited
KIEBIBEZREBR AR

6,000,000 75

Hong Kong HK$8,275,000

a5E 8,275,000/ 7T

Hong Kong HK$6,652,026
&8 6,652,02678 7
Hong Kong HK$10,000

&8 10,0008 7T

Equity interest owned
by the Company
At 31 March
FAFM3A31H
HE R

2025

2024

20254 20244
%

%

Principal activities

B+ 30

100

Provision of
environmental
hygiene and related
services and airline
catering support
services

RMERIEEE KB
R U A EER
S IER

Provisions of pest
management

services
RRESEERE

Property holding

KREZR

Dormant

RIEIRE )




35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAFsER R MI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #;Z=2025%3H31H LFEE

35. RMIB AT 2w @)

Place of Equity interest owned
incorporation/ Issued ordinary by the Company
Name of subsidiary operation share capital At 31 March Principal activities
I, BRITLER KAFRRIASZH
ME AR % R (N HE R FEEH
2025 2024
20255 20244
%
%
Winson Inno Services (Macau) Macau MOP25,000 - Provision of
Company Limited environmental
hygiene and related
services
Winson Inno Services (Macau) #P3 25,0002 37t RMEIRIREE BRI

Company Limited

- KIERIE (RRER) BEEE
BRAF

XIRRIE (E) BEEE
BRAF

RMB9,868,860

A 9,868,8607T

R

Provision of property
management and
related services

R EEE R IERH
i8]




FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MR

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the five years ended 31 March 2025, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements issued by the Company is set
out below. The summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.
2025
20254
HK$’000
FHET
Results HIE
Revenue g
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR (E518) /B
Assets and liabilities BERER
Total assets MEE
Total liabilities aEME%
Total equity T ABRE

ik E A RBT ELBIZEE
KEBE F2025F3831HIERBEEERE
BUNRBEKRBEHEZHIIWT o HEL R
WS EZMBREN—ID o

MBHREN

2024 2023 2022 2021
20244 20234 20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT THET THET
470,707 462,197 473,685 529,987
10,897 24,745 22,096 73,809
282,028 275,013 264,233 276,464
70,728 63,728 68,855 67,782
211,300 211,285 195,378 208,682
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